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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Governing Board
Mercer County
Stanton, Neorth Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
gresented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
und information of Mercer County, Stanton, North Dakota, as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the county’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with acecounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gevermment
Audirting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit inveolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidenece about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due teo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal contreol relevant to the county’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the county’'s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. BAn audit
alsc includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Mercer County, Stanton, North Dakota, as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.




Other Matters

BEequired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Statesz of America
require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through
13, budgeting comparison information on pages 55 through 65 and the
schedule of employer's share of met pension liability on page 66 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of rthe basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Beard, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the informaticon
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during ocur audits of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Cur audits were conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the county’'s basic
financial statements. The schedules of fund activity arising from cash
transactions are presented for additional amalysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedules of fund activity arising from cash transactions are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used tc prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
bagiec financial statements themselves, and other additional procedureas
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unitred
States of Mmerica. In our opinion, the schedules of fund activity
arising from cash transactions are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Govermment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Audiring Standards, we have alsc issued
cour report dated May 17, 2019 on our consideration of the county’'s
internal contreol over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regqulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering the
county’'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ﬁfﬁlél Mﬂt— P’?&Lr’ﬂr

Rath and Mehrer, P.C.

Bismarck, North Dakota

May 17, 2019




MERCER COUNTY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2018 and 2017

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of Mercer County’s
financial performance provides an overall review of the county’s
financial activities for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017. The intent of the MD&A is to look at the county’'s financial
performance as a whole. It should, therefore, be read in conjunction
with the basic financial statements and related notes.

The MD&A is a new element of the Regquired Supplementary Information
specified in the Government Accounting Standards Board's (GASE)
Statement No. 34 "Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments". Certain
comparative information between the current fiscal years and prior year
is reqguired to be presented in the MDEA.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2018 are as
follows:

* Net position of the county decreased %1,261,369 as a result of the
current year’'s operations. HNet position of the governmental activities
decreased $1,266,611 and net positicn of the business-type activities
increased 55,242,

* Governmental net position teotaled %4,205,29%0 and business-type net
position totaled 5435, 791.

* Total revenues from all sources were 511,161,783 for governmental
activities and $295,74% for business-type activities.

* Total expenses were 512,428,394 for governmental activities and
£290,507 for business-type activities.

* The county’s general fund had 55,549,663 in total revenues and
$6,194,189% in total expenditures. There was a total of $314,235
received from other financing sources. Overall, the general fund
balance decreased by 5$330,291 for the Year ended December 31, 2018.

Key financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2017 are as
follows:

* Net position of the county decreased $2,029,346 as a result of the
current year's operations. Net position of the governmental activities
decreased $2,033,232 and net position of the business-type activities
increased 53, 886.

* Governmental net position totaled $5,471,901 and business-type nat
position totaled %430,550.

* Total revenues from all sources were 511,996,376 for governmental
activities and 5348,213 for business-type activities.

* Total expenses were 514,029,608 for governmental activities and
$344,227 for business-type activities.

* The county's general fund had $4,921,803 in tetal revenues and
£5,893,747 in total expenditures. There was a total of 5411,278
paid from other financing uses. Owerall, the general fund
balance decreased by 51,383,222 for the year ended December 31, 2017.




USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual financial report consists of a series of statements and
related footnotes. These statements are organized so that the reader
can understand the county as a financial whole. The statements then
proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at financial
activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide
information about the activities of the whole county, presenting both an
aggregate view of the county’'s finances and a longer-term view of those
finances. These statements present information as follows:

* Governmental activities - this includes most of the county’s basic
services, which are primarily supported by property taxes, user
fees and intergovernmental revenues.

* Business-type activities - this includes those services which are
intended to recover all or a significant part of their costs
through user fees,

Fund financial statements provide the next lewvel of detail. These
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as
what remains for future spending. Separate statements for each fund
category - governmental and proprietary - are presented. The emphasis
of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

REPORTING ON THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Actiwvities

These statements are summaries of all the funds used by the county to
provide programs and activities and attempt to answer the guestion "How
did the county do financially during the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017?"

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the county's
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
county is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information on how the county’s net
position changed during the fiscal year. This statement is presented
using the accrual basis of accounting, which means thar all changes in
net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for come items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for
example, uncollected taxes and earned but unused sick leave and/or
vacation leave) .




These two statements report the county’s net position and changes in
that position. This change in net position is important because it
tells the reader whether, for the county as a whole, the financial
position of the county has improved or deteriorated. The causes of this
change may be the result of many factors, some financial and some not .

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the
county reports governmental and business-type activities., GCovernmental
activities are the activities where most of the county’s programs and
services are reported including, but nmot limited to, general government,
public safety, highways and public improvement, health and welfare,
culture and recreation, and conservation and economic development .
Business-type activities are where the county’s enterprise services are
reported, including but not limited to, landfill and closure and
postclosure care costs.

REPORTING ON THE COUNTY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Balance Sheet - Governmental and Proprietarv Funds

The county uses separate funds to account for and manage money dedicated
for particular purposes (e.g. taxes collected from special mill levies
and funds received from grants and donations). The fund basis financial
statements allow the county te demonstrate its stewardship over and
accountability for resources provided by taxpavers and other entities.
Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the
county’s major funds. Using the criteria established by GASE Statement
No. 34, the county’'s general fund, building fund, county building fund,
township roads fund, county road fund, aid to secondary roads fund and
health insurance fund are considered "major governmental funds". The
Mercer County landfill fund, landfill loan fund and landfill closure
reserve fund are considered "major enterprise funds".

The county’'s other governmental funds, which are used te account for a
multitude of financial tramnsactions, are summarized under the heading
"Other Governmental Funds".

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE

Table I provides a summary of the county’'s net position as of December
31, 2018 and 2017. A comparative analysis of county-wide data is
presented for both the current years and prior year.

As indicated in the financial highlights above, the county’'s net
position decreased by $1,261,369 and $2,.029,346 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017. Changes in net position may Serve over time
as a useful indicator of the county's financial position.




As of December 31, 2018, the county’s net position of 54,641,081 is
segregated into three separate categories. Net investment in capital
agsets totals 54,214,032 of the county’'s total net position. It should
be noted that these assets are not available for future spending. The
restricted component of net positicn is $3,632,677 of the county’s net
position and represents rescurces that are subject te external
restrictions on how they must be spent. The remaining unrestricted
component of net position is (%$3,205,628), which includes (£2,781,975)
relating to the reporting of its share of the unfunded liability for the
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System as required by GASE
Statement No. 68. The net amount of (5423,653) is available to meet the
county’s ongoing obligations.

As of December 31, 2017, the county’s net position of 55,902,451 is
segregated into three separate categories. Net investment in capital
assets totals 53,413,796 of the county's total net position. It should
be noted that these assets are not available for future spending. The
restricted component of net position is 54,820,317 of the county'’'s net
position and represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they must be spent. The remaining unrestricted
component of net position is ($2,331,661), which includes (52,146, 999)
relating to the reporting of its share of the unfunded liakility for the
North Dakeota Public Employees Retirement System as reguired by GASE
Statement No. €B. The net amount of ($184,662) is available to meet the
county's ongoing obligations.

Table I

Net Position
As of December 31, 2018

Business-
vernmantal Type
Assets
Current Assets 4,272,008 480,296
Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 13,680,640 142,458
Total Assets 17,952,646 622,754
Deferred Outflows of Rescurces 2,933,068 o
Liabilities o
Current Liabilities 521,850
Long-Term Liabilities 9,641,628 186, 963
Het Pension Liability 5,562,481
Total Liabilities 15,725, 960 186,963
Deferred Inflows of Resources 954.465“

NHet Position

Het Investment in Capital Assets 4. 071,574 142,458
Restricted 3,504,677 128, 000
Unrestricted (2,370,962} 165,333

Total Net Position 4, 205,290 435,791




Net Position
Az of December 31, 2017

Assets
Current Assets
Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Net Pension Liability
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Net Position

As of December 31,

Assets
Current Assets
Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)

Total Assets
Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Eestricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Fosition

Businegs-
Governmental Tyvpe
5,501,174 433,207
13,235,121 173,304
18,736,295 606,511
1,426,810
472,026
10,061,644 175,961
3,374,895
13,308,565 175,961
782,639
3,240,492 173,304
4,700,317 120,000
(2,468,307) 137,246
5,471,901 430,550
s EEEREE==== SEEIEaSsS===—=g
20186
Businessg-
Governmental — Tvpe
12,707,190 382,281
7,912,001 210,091
20,619,151 T E52,372
£77,664
431,199
10,391,617 165, 708
2,067,230
12,892,047 165, 708
B9%, 675 -
4,609,459 210,091
3,601,815 120,000
(706,181} 96,573

7,505,133 426,664




Table II shows the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017. A comparative analysis of county-wide data

is presented for both current years and prior year.
Table II

Changes in Net Pasition
As of December 31, 2018

Business-
Governmental Type
Ravenues
Program Revenues :
Charges for Services 902, 025 295,710
Operating Grants and
Contributions 2,995,130
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 3,346,152
Other Taxes 2,680,122
State Aid - Unrestricted 713,697
Federal Aid - Unrestricted 150,830
Interest Earnings and
Other Revenue 122 ,B36 3B
Gain on Trade-In of Capital
hssets 50,992
Total Revenues 11,161,783 285,749
Expenses
General Government 5,420,680
Public safety 3,030,001
Highways and Public Improve. 2,819,154
Health and wWelfare ZEB4, 188
Culture and Recreation 63,273
Conservation and Econ. Dew, 451,835
Other 75,550
Interest on Long-Term Debt 284,014
Landfill 283,301
Closure and Postclosure
Care Costs 7,206
Total Expenses 12,428,394 290,507
Net Change in Position {(1,266,611) 5,242

Property taxes constituted 30%, other taxes 24%, operacing grants and
contributions 27%., and charges for services made up 11% of the total
revenues of all activities of the county for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2018.




General government constituted 43%, public safety 24%, highways and
public improvement 23%, and enterprise 3% of total expenses for all
activities during the fiscal yvear ended December 31, 2018.
Changes in Net Position
Az of December 31, 2017
Business-
Governmental Type
Revenues
Program Eevenues:
Charges for Services 923,901 348,192
Operating Grants and
Contributions 3,887,341
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 2,592,144
Other Taxes 3,155,984
State Aid - Unrestricted 994,273
Federal Aid - Unrestricted 164,258
Interest Earnings and
Other Revenue 298,435 21
Total Revenues 11,995, 376 348,213
Expenses
General Government 5,468,680
Public Safety 2,946,119
Highways and Public Improve. 3,665,724
Health and Welfare 1,087,360
Culture and Recreation 64,884
Conservation and Econ. Dew. 453,532
Other 51,395
Interest on Long-Term Debt 291,515
Landfill 337,019
Closure and Postclosure
Care Costs 7,308
Total Expenses 14,029,608 344,327
Net Change in Position (2,033,232) 3,886
R am e T P —

Property taxes constituted 21%, other taxes 26%, operating grants and
contributions 32%, and charges for services made up 11% of the total
revenues of all activities of the county for the fisecal year ended
Decamber 31, 2017.

General government constituted 38%, public safety 21%, highways and
public improvement 26%, and enterprise 3% of total expenses for all
activities during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017




Changes in Met Position
As of December 31, 2016

Business-
Governmental Tvope
REevenues
Frogram Revenueas:
Charges for Services 2,080,950 321,031
Operating Grants and
Contributions 7,076,124
Zeneral Revenues:
Property Taxes 2,545,022
Other Taxes 2,994,828
State Aid - Unrestricted B79,417
Federal Aid - Unrestricted 306,229
Interest Earnings and
Other Revenue 246,510 27
Gain on Trade-In of Capital
Assers 79,069
Total Revenues 16,208,150 321,058
Expenses
General Government 4,519,103
Public safety 2,642,208
Highways and Public Improve. 9,085,423
Health and Welfare T47,439
Culture and Recreation 11,023
Conservation and Econ. Dev, 422,564
Other 250,793
Interest on Long-Term Debt 264 ,B05
Landfill 551,559
Closure and Posteclosure
Care Costs 7.534
Total Expenses 17,943,358 559,093
Net Change in Position {1,735,208) (238, 035)

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program gservices and the
charges for services and grants offsetting those services. Table IIT
shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. That is,

it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and
other unrestricted revenues.

Table III

Total and Net Cost of Services
Az of December 31, 2018

Total Cost Net Cost

Year Ended Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2018 Dec. 21, 2018
General Governmeant 5,420,680 3,621,377
Public Safety 3,030,001 2,722,598
Highways and Publiec Improvement 2,819,154 1,146,847
Health and Welfare 284,188 245,123
Culture and Recreation 63,273 £3,273
Congervation and Economic Dvlpmnt. 451,535 372,060
Other 75,550 75,550
Interest on Long-Term Debt 284,014 2B4,014

Total Expenses 12,428,354 B,531, 240

W = S sTEE=s=




Total and Net Cost of Services
As of December 31, 2017

Total Cost Net Cost
Year Ended Year Ended
Dec. 31, 2017 Dec_ 31, 2017
General Government 5,468,680 3,713,433
Public Safety 2,946,119 2,296,668
Highways and Publiec Improvement 3,665,724 1,357,540
Health and Welfare 1,087,360 1,052,389
Culture and Recreation 64,884 64,884
Congervation and Economic Dvlpmnt, 453,932 410,542
Other 51,395 51,385
Interest on Long-Term Debt 291,515 291,515
Total Expenses 12,025,608 T 9,238,366
sS=ESESEEE=E===== EE=ES=mEaaE=sE==

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMMENTAL FUNDS

The purpose of the county’s governmental funds iz to provide information
on the near-term inflows, outflows and balances of available resources.
Unassigned fund balance genmerally can be used as a measure of the
county’s net resources available for spending as of the end of the

fisca ar. These funds are accounted for using the modified acecrual
basis of accounting. The county's governmental Punds had total revenue
of $11,088,131 and expenditures of 12,667,472 for the year ended
December 31, 2018. &A= of December 31, 2018, the unassigned fund balance
of the county’'s general fund was (540,315} and total unassigned fund
fund kalances for all the county’'s governmental funds was (598,317 .

The county’'s governmental funds had total revenus of 511,969,115 and
expenditures of $19,468,956 for the year ended December 31, 2017. As of
December 31, 2017, the unassigned fund balance of the county's general
fund was 5289,976 and total unassigned fund fund balances for a?l the
county’s governmental funds was 5$188,480.

GENERAL FUND BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

During the course of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, the county amended the
general fund budgets. The gross effect of these amendments was to
increase appropriaticns by $37,555 and $303,273 for the years ending
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Actual revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018 was %5246,539 less
than budgeted. Actual expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2018
were equal to the amended budget.

Actual revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 was 5$323,425 more
than budgeted. Actual expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2017
were less than budget byxglﬂ,ﬂﬁz.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the county had %13,823,098 and
13,408,425, respectively, invested in capital assets. The followin
tables show the E&lancea. for governmental and business-type activities,
as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016.

Table IV
Capital Assets

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
As of December 31, 2018

Business-
vernmental Type
Land 51,000 2,906
Buildings 11,548, 711
Machinery and Vehicles 2,080,929 139,552
Total (net of depreciation) I3 580, 640 127,358
SEESERE====== EEsS_————mpEmEs=
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This total represents an increase of $414,673 in capital assets from
January 1, 2018. The increase in buildings was due to the completion of
the addition to the county’s courthouse building and jail facilities.

Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
Az of December 31, 2017

Business-
Governmental Tyvoe
Land 51,000 2,906
Construction in Progress 9,613,894
Buildings 1,445,957
Machinery and Vehicles 2,124,270 170,398
Total (net of depreciation) 13,235, 13231 173,304

This total represents an increase of 55,286,333 in capital assets from
January 1, 2017. The increase in constructicn in Erogresa was due to
the continuing costs related to the construction of an addition to the
county’s courthouse building and jail facilities.

Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
As of December 31, 2016

Business-
Governmental Type
Land 51,000 2,906
Construction in Progress 4,095, 700
Buildings 1,479,770
Machinery and Vehicles 2,285,531 207,185
Total (net of depreciation) 7.912,001 210,091
============ =====smms===

For a detailed breakdown of the additions and deletions to capital
assets, readers are referred to Note 7 to the audited financial
statements which follow this analysis.

DEBET ADMINISTRATION

As of December 11, 2018, the county had $10,335,796 in outstanding debt
of which $507,204 was due within one year. BAs of December 31, 2017, the
county had 510,694,519 in outstanding debt of which 5456, 913 was due
within one year.

During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, the county issued two new long-term
debt cbligation:

Capital Lease Payable, in the amount of 5109,336. The county
obtained funding for the purchase of (3) 2018 Chevy Tahoes.
This lease will have a final payment on May 16, 2020.

Capital Lease Payable, in the amount of $115,101. The county
obtained funding for the purchase of (3} 2017 Chevy Tahoes.
This lease will have a final payment on July 7, 2019.

For a detailed breakdown of the long-term debt, readers are referred to
Note 10 to the audited financial statements which follow this analysis.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide cur taxpayers and creditors
with a general overview of the county’'s finances and to show the
county’'s accountability for the money it receives. Anyone who has
guestions about information contained in this report or who is=s
interasted in receiwvi additional information is encouraged to contact
Shana Brost, County Auditor, Mercer County, Stanton, ND S8571.

13




MERCER COUNTY
Stenton, North Dakota

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2018

Primary Component
Government unit
Water
Governmental Business-Type Resource
Activities Activities Total District
ASSETS:
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments & 177,070,268 308,408.52 4,485 4LTB.TB 46,824 .53
Accounts Receivable 1,034.81 1,035.81
Taxes Receivable 93,899 35 3,899.35 3,249.09
Restricted Assets:
Cash 171,887 77 171,887.77
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 51,000.00 2,506.00 53,906.00
Buildings 11,548, 711.00 11,548,711.00
Machinery and Vehicles 2,080,929.00 139,552.00 2,220 ,481.00
Total Capital Assets 13,5680, 640,00 142, 438,00 13,823, 098.00
Total Assets 17,952, 666,42 622,754.29  18,575,400.71 950,073,462
DEFERRED DUTF OF RESOURCES:
Changes in Resources Related to Pensions 2,933,068.00 2,933,068.00
LIABILITIES:
Interest Payable 14,645 B4 14,645 _B4
Leng-Term Liabilities:
Due Within Ore Year:
Capital Lease Payable 74, 831.58 74 ,831.58
General Obligation Bonds Payable 145, 000.00 145,000.00
Coal Impact Loan Payable 287 37278 287, 372.78
Due After One Yeoar:
Capital Lease Payable 193,593.%1 193,593.91
General Obligation Bonds Payable 3,115,000.00 3,115,000.00
Coal Impact Loan Payable 5,793,247 .42 5,793, 267.42
Lendfill Closure end Postclosure Care Costs 171,366.00 171,364.00
Compensated Absences Payable 339, 767.01 15,597.09 555,364 .10
Het Pension Liability 5,562,481.00 5,562 ,481.00
Total Liabilities 15,725,959.54 186,963.09 15,912,922.63
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable Revenue BO1,902.73 B801,902.73
Changes in Resources Related to Pensions 152,562.00 152,562.00
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 54, 664 T3 954,664 .73
NET POSITION:
Het [nvestment in Capital Assets 4,0F1,574.31 142,458.00 4,214,032.31
Restricted for:
Special Purposes 3,696,669, 51 3,496,569 .41
Debt Service 8,208.04 8,208.04
Lardfill Closure ard Postclosure Care Costs 128,000.00 128,000.00
Unrestricted (3,370,961.61) 165,3533.20 (3,205,628.41) 950,073,682
Total Net Position 4,205,290.15 435,791.20 &,547,081.35 950,073.62
EEESa samERESS==—c===zZgpEES= SESTESEERs=E=s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017

Primary Component
Gowernment Unit
Water
Governmental Business-Type Resource
Activities Activities Total District
ASSETS:
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 5,427 ,650.76 28%,357.11 5,717,007.87 BTY, 949 .33
Accounts Receivable 2,283 83 2,2B83.83
Taxes Receivable 71,239.73 71,239.73 3,270.19
Restricted Assets:
Cash 143,849.75 143,849.75
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 51,000.00 2,905.00 53,906.00
Construction in Progress 9,613 ,894.00 9,613 894.00
Bui ldings 1,445,957.00 1,645 957.00
Machinery and Wehicles 2,124 ,270.00 170,398.00 2,294 ,668.00
Total Capital Assets 13,235,121.00 173,304.00 13,408,425.00
Total Assets 18,7348,295.32 606,510,886 19,342 B046.18 BA3 219.52
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS DF RESOURCES:
Changes in Resources Related to Pensions 1,4626,810.00 1,426,810.00
LIABILITIES:
Interest Payable 15,112.50 15,112.50
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year:
Capital Lease Payable 38,023.08 38,023.08
General Obligation Bonds Payable 140, 000.00 140,000 .00
Cocal Impact Loan Payable 278,890.07 278, 890.07
Due After One Year:
Capital Lease Payable 197,075.98 197,075.98
General Obligation Bonds Payable 3,260,000.00 3,260, 000.00
Ceal Impact Loan Payable 6,080,540, 20 6,080, 640.20
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 164, 160.00 164, 160.00
Compensated Absences Payable 323,928.M 11,801.21 535,729.22
MWet Pension Liability 3,374, 895.00 3,374, 895.00
Total Liabilities 13,908,564 . B4 17,961.21 14,084 526.05
DEFERRED [MFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable Revenue 583,725.35 583,725.35
Changes in Resources Related to Pensions 198, 914,00 198,914 .00
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 782,639.35 782,639.35
MET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,260, 691,67 173,304 .00 3,813, 795,67
Restricted for:
Special Purposes 4 6BB 490.50 4, 6BE 490.40
Debt Service 11,826.16 11,826.16
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 120,000.00 120, 000,00
Unrestricted (2,568,907.10) 137,245.65 (2,331,661.45) BA3, 219.52
Total Met Position 5,471,901.13 430,549,465 5,902,450.78 BE3 219.52
e e e e 5 8 EEmEREsEESSSyS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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General Rowvenues:

Taxes:

Froperty taxes; levied for gemeral purpases 1,739, 599.82 1.739,.399.82 102,069 .52

Property taxes; levied for special purposes 1,385,538.17 1,385 53417

Property taxes; levied for debt service 22h,214,12 221,214.12

Telecommnications tax 2,823.2% 2,42%.2%

Homestead tax credit 37,261,086 37,261 .06

Coal severance tax 1,B01,831.51 1,B01,831,54

Coal comversion Tax B3B8, 525,60 B38,525.60

0il and gas production tames 100 80 100,80

State aid met restricted to specific program:

State aid distribution T13, 696,04 T3, &% 94 25, 180,08
Federal aid not restricted to specific program:

Federal mineral royelties 147,254 .33 a7, 2% B3

Flood control 078 507. 16

Payments [in lieu of rases 3,028.12 3,028,112

Earmings on investments and ather revenus 522,835 .98 38.02 322,87%.00 1,428,148
Gain on trade-in of capital assets 50,992.00 50,992 .00
Total General Revenues T,dbh 628,90 38,02 7,254 ,566.92 137, 217.T%
Change in Met Position (1, 266 610.%48) 5,2461.55 (1,2681,389.45) 65,854,710
Mer Pogition - Jaruary 1 5,471,901.13 430,549.45 5,902 450.78 AA3 219,52
er Position - December 31 §,205 290,15 435,791.20 &, 647,081.35 950,073,482

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, Morth Dakcta

Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis
For the Year Ended ODecember 31, 2017

Wet (Expense) Rovenie and Changes in Met Poziticn

Frogran Revenues Primary Gowernment Compoanent Unit
tharges for Operating Grants Govermmental Business- Type Warer Resource
Exponses Sarvices ard Contributions Berivities Actiwities Total pigtriet

Punctione/Frograss
Primary Govermmase:

Govermmental Activities:

eneral Gowverndent 5,568 &7 aT a9 503,78 1,405, T2 .46 (3,713,433 _43) 3, 713,433,433

Publ ic Safety 2,08, 118,73 351,453.72 297, 99657 {2,296, 548 4u) (2,296 668 .48)

Highuays &nd Public Improve. 3,665, 723.90 172,552.73 2,128,630, 79 1,357, 540.38) 1,357,540, 38)

Bealth and Welfare 1,087, 550,02 3.97.50 1,062, 588, 52) (1,052, 388._52)

Culture ard Recreation &4 BEX 9T {64, BE3.97) (&t BRE 9T)

Congervation and Econ. Dew. 453 932 .42 LY, 200,47 (610, 541 . &0) (470,541,602

Other 1,595,582 51, 5% .82 (51,396 .82)

Imrarest on Long-Term Debt 291,514 &1 (291,514,811 291,514,617

Tetal Goverrmental AcTivities 14,029,607 T8 23,900 45 3, 8aT %4132 (%, 238, 365.79) 09,238, 345. ™)

Business-Type Activities:

Mercer County Landfill 357.019.43 348, 192448 11,173.m 11730

Larctfill Loan ¥.308.00 (7. 308.00) (7,308_00)

Total Busimess-Type Aitivities 3oL 3273 348 19248 3, 85501 3 885.01
Tetal Primary Gowerrment 14, 373 935.1% 1,272,083,09 5,847, 541,52 {9,238, 365.7%) I BAS 0N (9,234, 500.78) _‘

L e T TN TEEETETEET

Component Thair-
Water Resource Distrigt &7 ,781.18 5,852.00 (62, 129.18)




GeneTal Revenves:

Tares:

Froperty tames; levied for general purposes &7, TH7.28 &T1 T37.24 13%,338._10

Property tames: lewied for special purposes 1,569,005.29 1,669, 005.29

Proparty taxes; lewied for debt service 251,601.26 51,401,234

Telecommunications tax 2,423.29 2,423.29

Homestead tax credit 29, 395,54 29,395,540

Coal severance tax 1,848, 121,58 1,848 121.59

Coal comvers|on Tax 1,278,063.81 1.278,063.81

State aid not restricted to specific program:

state ald distribution BoL 272,97 P ET2.97 15,113.22
Federal aid not restricted o specific program:

Federal mirmral rovalties 160,053.97 160,053 .97

Flood control 505.53 505.53

Payments in lieu of taxes 3,738.30 5. 734.50

Earnings on irvestments and other reverwe 298 435.06 21.05 298654611 6, 219.02
Total General Rewenues 7,205, 133,87 21,08 7,208, 1%, e, 870, 34
Change in Net Position (2,035,251.%92) 5,885.06 (2,029, 345.88) 58, 541.18
Wet Position - January 1 7,505, 133,05 424 BA3.5% T, 931, TR4.64 TBL A4TE. 34
Net Position - December 31 5,471, 901.13 430, 549.65 5,902,450.7B EA3, 219.52

The accompanying notes are an incegral part of these financial statements.




MERCER COUNTY
Sranton, North Dakota

Balance Sheet
Goverrmental Funds
Decesber 31, 2B

Ma jor Funds
Ald o Otmer Tatal
Coumity Towrghip County Secordary Heal th Govarrmental Gowermmenta l
Gl Building Building Rowds Hoad Roads Irsurance Funds Funds
ASEETE:
Cash and Irvestments 328, 192.72 &%, 734,05 52,980,592 A8 LT2 53 257.4T.BL &5T,254 38 1,38, 559,49 B&3,425.53 4, 17T, 07,26
Accounts Receivable 1,05&.81 1,056,581
Taxes Receiwvable &b, 2IT LY 14, 218,17 2.910.83 23,544 B4 LA
Interfund Receivables 49 _655.5% &9, 555,59
Tatal Mssets L2e 0TE.ED 45, 730.0% 52,950.92 66 AT2.93 272,76 B2 66T, V65.21  1,385,539.5% 986,070.79  4,321,682.00
TETEST B TP EETTE TEEET L TETET TZ=zzzza2
LIABILITIES F WF
Of HESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabialitigs:
Intarfursd Payables 49, 655.59 49, 55,59
Peferred Inflows of Rescurces:
Unevailable Revenue G55 39174 123, 88402 o7 B45.15 209, BA1_T& 95,802 .08

Total Liabilities and Deferred
Inflowd of Resources il BT 123, 884,02 FT.645. 18 259,.537.35 45 45T &7




Fund Balanges:
Resrrficted for:

General Gowerrment 1,385,539, 69 104, &30 .49 1,470, 170,18
Funlic Safety 21,918,582 21, 918.82
Highways and Fublic Improvements i, 472,53 148, 842.80  569,520.05 7. TED.9E 1,106 50, 76
Health and Welfare 47, 212.a7 &7, 212.07
Conservarion and Economic Dewvelopment 193,879.04 183, 87908
Emergency Services 135, 385 44 139,384 44
Other Purposes 45, 112.39 L4, 112.3%
Cemetery &,588.08 &, 588,08
Courthousa/Jail Comstruction 52,980.%2 52,980,92
Bul lding Improvensnts 65, 730,05 65, 730.05
ekt Service 15, 849,05 15,849, 04
Unassigned &0,315.3%) €58, 002113 (98, 317.4%)
Total Fund Balances (40, 315,350 &5, 730,05 52,980.92 L&k &T2.9% 148, B42.80 549,520,805 1, 385,539.49 72T, 63544 5.576, 20635

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances £24 07580 &5, 730,08 52,780.92 w66, 4T2.93 272, 75,82 667,165.21 1,385, 539,49 236, 970.7% &, 521 86201

SSEEszzssaszzacs LLe b == wET e aETE SETEsEssssswemEmETE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finencial statements.
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ASSETS:
Cash and Ireaatments
Acgounte Recelvable
Taxes Receivable
Interfund Receivabl es

Total Assets
LEABILITIES, PEFERRED IMFLOWE
OF_BESOURCES AND FUMD BALANCES

Liabialities:
[nterfund Payables

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable Reverue

Total Lisbilities and Deferred
Inflowt of Resources

HERCER COUMTY
Stantan, Korth Dakota

Balance Shest
Governmental Funds
Decenber 31, 2017

Haer Funds

Aid to Other Total
County Tawrship County Secondary Health Gevermmental Gavernmental

Genaral Bulldfmg Building Roads Baad Roads Irsurancy Fumda Funds
359,481 12 Sm2, 355,91 BT ATZ.62 376,350.76 &7, D92 .45 1. 347,621,865 1,191 478,65 S 427 &4, TE
2,285 _A3 2,28%.83
19.735.15 11.508.40 B,295.01 F1. A7 m,23e.73
32.005.12 32,005.12
£11,221.39 5462,355.91 B2R, 47242 e, 350, 7% 13,792.23 575 387 .48 1 34T 421,85 1,223, 177.62 5,533,179.44

=zzz=s s=zz3zsszzzEsssEmsssssssssszzosos L o

32.005.12 32,005.12
I, M5 95,261.30 &5, 523,04 171,536.03 454, 045 08
2,25 M 95,261.30 &6,922.04 205, 561,15 686, 570. 20




Fund Balgnges:
Restricted for:
General Goverrment
Publie Safety
Righways and Public Improvements
Aealth and Welfare
Conservation and Economic Development
Emargency Services
Other Purposes
Cemetary
Courthouse/Jail Comstruction
Building Imgrovements
Debt Service
Unassigned

Total Furd Balances

Total Liabilivies, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances

The accompanying rates are an integral part of these financial statements,

1,347, 621,65 #1,551.51 1,438, 773,24

262, 191.73 242,191.73

376,350.76 508, 465.42 103,085, s, 901,52

35, 20887 35,208.87

130, 420,81 130,420 .81

1539, 58464 139, 384,44

200,373.27 250,373.27

T,058.07 T, 058,07

B23,472.42 823,472_42

542,355.91 542,355

21,408,958 21,508,928

289 975,68 (81 ,4£9.07) {40, 026.65) 158,479,956
255 975,68 562 ,355.91 823, 4T2.52 36, 350.78 (B, 469,070 508,885.42 1,347 4271.45 1,009, 63647 4,845, 209,24
&11,20.39 562, 355,91 B23 472 42 L 13, 72.83 573, 38T .46 1,347,421.45 1,823, 177.462 5,553, 17944
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Wet Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Total Fund Balances for Goverrmental Funds 3,376,204 .34
Total net position reported for government activities in the statement of
net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and are not reported in the goverrmental funds.

Cost of Capital Assets 18,005, 199.00
Less Accumulated Depreciation (4,324 ,559.00)
Het Capital Assets 13,680,640.00

Property taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not aveilable
soon encugh to pay for the current period’s expenditures and therefare
are reparted as unaveilable reverue in the funds. ¥3,899.35

The deferred outflows and inflows of resources reperted on the
statement of net position are the result of changes in resources
related to pensions and do not affect current financial resources.

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,933,068.00
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources (152,562.00)
Net Deferred Dutflows/Inflows of Resources 2,780,506.00

Long-term liabilities applicable to the county’s governmental activities

are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not

reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not I
accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an |
expenditure when due. ALl lisbilities -both current and lomg-term- are

reported in the statement of net pegition. Balances at December 31, 2018

are;

Capital Leases Payable (268,425.4%)
General Obligation Bends Payable (3,260, 000.00)
Coal Impact Loan Payable (6,080, &40.20)
Interest Payable (14, 645 _84)
Compensated Absences Payable (539, 767.01)
Net Pension Liability (5,562, 481.00)

Total Long-Term Liabilities {15,725,959.54)

Total Met Position of Governmental Activities 4,.205,290.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Reconciliation of Goverrmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds

Total net position reported for government activities in the statement of
net position is different because:

Capital assets used in goverrmental activities are not financial
resources and are not reperted in the governmental funds.

Cost of Capital Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Met Capital Assets

Property taxes wWill be collected after year-end, but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current period’s expenditures and therefore
are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds.

The deferred cutflows and inflows of resources reported on the
statement of net position are the result of changes in resources
related to pensions and do not affect current financial resources.

Total Deferred Dutflows of Resocurces
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Ket Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Long-term liabilities applicable to the county’s govermmental activities
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not
reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not

accrued in goverrnmental funds, but rather is recognized as an
expenditure when due. ALl lisbilities -both current and long-term- are
reported in the statement of net position. Balances at December 31, 2017
are:

Capital Leases Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable
Coal Impact Loan Payable
Interest Payable

Compensated Absences Payable
Net Pension Liability

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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17,123,508.00
(3,B88,387.00)

1,426,810.00
(198,974.00)

(235,099.06)
(3,400,000.00)
(6,359,530.27)

€15,112.50)

(523,928.01)
(3,374,695 .00)

4,846,209.24

13,235,121.00

71,230.73

1,227,894.00

(13,908,564 . 84)

5,471,901.13




MERCER COUMNTY
Stanton, Karth Dakota

Statement of Reverues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Goverrmertal Furds
Far the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Major Furds
Afd ta Dther Total
County Tesrghip Counry Secondary Health Gaverrmental Govarnmental
Gereral Bui Lding Buildimg Raade Boad Roads Insurance Furcy Funds:

Reverwes:

Tares 1,712,907, 48 Lag TOR.TR 333, 55435 807 32T AT 23 492,45
Licenses, Permits and Faes 9,98.23 34, 480,00 107, 84704 154,258, 24
Intergovernmental 3,208, 809,40 o0, 12217 Ldh 241,85 77, 500,28 1,241,622 81 5,079, 29 31
Charges faor Services 36T, 25067 162,053, 49 218,482,138 TET, 785,29
Miscel Larsous 255, 7T43.73 3,375,145 7,068, 52 1,540, 482,10 55, 633. 7% 1,783, 318.08
Total Reverues 5,569, 662 .51 3,378 7,084 32 1227 1,136, 557,98 &£11, 054 .63 1,4480, 582 _10 2,431, 71381 11,088,151.41
Expenditures:

Current:

General Government 3,128, 77600 117,902 .82 1,622,384 76 3,735.07 & 672 TTE_1S

Public Safety 2,255, 967. 30 &612,671.95 2 848 &19. 27

Highways and Public [mprowe. 2,487 5209 2,657 520,91

Health and welfare 189, 065 &9 93,385 .40 282 454.89

Culture and Recreation 55, 00000 B, 2T2.5% &% 272,59

Conser. and Economic Dwvipmnt. 14, 572.97 L28, 544 A2 &41, 11759

Other 52,416,580 £3,135,19 75, 549.99
Capital Outlay 32,548.00 659,653 .00 209, 885 00 114 ,893.00 1,014, 979 00
bebt Service:

Primcipal 278,890.07 1,530.00 214,479, 57 A5, B985

Interest 186,971.89 4,054 53 93 453,86 2B4, 4B0_28
Tetal Expendi pures &, 194, 188.53 777, 555,82 2,682 TR .44 1,422, 556, 28 1,590,573.26  12.667.472.31

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Dver Expenditures (844, 526,020 537,14 (770,497,503 90,1227 (1,548,132.51)  £11,054 .43 I8, 1T.8L 841,160.35 (1,579, 340.90)




Other Financing Sowrces (Uses):

Transfers In T&5,235.00 1,778, &k 3B 505, 09006 3,088,679.38
Transfers Dut (651,000.00)  (500,000.00) (350,000,001 (U, TAT, 679 30 (3,048 ATF 3A)
Proceeds from Capital Lease 109,336.00 109 334600
Total Other Finescing Sourdes

{Usesy 314,235.00 (500,000.00) 1,778, 464 38 (5330,000,00) £1,133,343.38) 109,336.00
Net Change in Fund Balances (330,291.02) (494, 425.B4) (T70,4%1.50) R0, 12217 250,311.87 61,054 .63 3, 1T.Es (292,203.03) (1,470,00%.90)
Fund Balance - January 1 20, 9T .68 567,355, BE5, &TE.42 376,350.76 (B1,489.07) 508 445 42 1,347 421 &5 1,009,838 4T 4,544, 209,24
Furd Balance - December 31 140,515.54) 65, T50.0% 52,980.92 86, 472.93 148,852 B 5&9,520.06 1,385 559,49 TET . 435,44 3,376,204 .34

The sccomparying notes are an integral part of these Firancial statements,




Revernes -

Tanes

Licenses, Permits and Feesg
Intergovernmental

Charges far Services
Miscellareous

Tatal Revenuss

Expenditures :

Current:
General Gowerrment
Public Safety
Highway and Public Improve.,
Health and Welfare
Cul ture and Recreation
Conser. and Economic Owipmnt.
Qther

Capital Outlay

Delt Sarvice:
Principal
Interest

Total Experditures

Excess (Deficiencyd of Eewerues
Over Expenditures

MERCER COUNTY
Stanten, Morth Dakota

Statement of RAevenwes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Gaverrmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Major Funds

Ald ta Other Tetal
County Township County Secondary ®ealth Gaverrmental GreerrEenTal

General Building Building LTF0Y Boad Eoads I rswrance Furds Furvis
63, 031.41 Lt 51,3023 1,284 D40 _35 2,564 882,78
1,955.39 55,625.85 Bs B95.50 164 4TT.85
3,591, 148482 B%,B10.10 1,180, 149.47 105, 168_32 1,831, 985.55 &, 7%, 259.85
413,524 .25 113,925 88 231, 9T2.6T 739,422 B0
242,143, 83 3.3483.14 1,335.00 L1847 1,387, 636,06 51,176 42 1,885 071,52
4,721,803.30 3,343.14 1,335.00 85,810,101, 726,567.46 356,512.55 1,387 &34 44 T 485, 085.80 11,969, 114,81
1,089,004.85 548,554 .21 1,431,234.59 4,342,790 5,123, 148,54
207,278 %2, 113,56 2,859 387.75
3,315, 340,90 3,315, 34050
187,560.98 PR, Dk 04 1,085, 42702
55,1000.00 o, BE% 7 &4 BAT ST
14, 265.17 432,555 85 ship, B55.02
26, 73816 26,656,566 51,3%4.82
5,518, 1% .00 108, 160,00 156,090 00 5,782, 454 00
270, 657. 75 &30.00 140, 271,94 411, B59.49
195,204 .21 5, 654,53 138, 155.08 138,013 .82
5,893, Te7.32 &, 164, TLE. 21 420,085 L% 1,631, 28.59 2,548,160.00 19,4548,955.55
979, P4l 02y 3, BeR.05 (8,185 513,210 B5,B10.10 ¢1,702,517.97y  356,512.55 {43,508.13) SR, WL B0 (7,499, 840,74




Cther Einancing Sgurges (Uses):

Trarefers In 1,493, 557,04 415,277.93 1,908 A28 GF
Tramsfers Out (411, 277.53) {100, 000,003 (1,397,551.04) (1,908, 828.97)
Proceeds from Capital Lease 115, 101..00 115, 101.00
Total Other Financing Sources

[Uses) 411, 277.93) 1,493,551.06 (100,000,003 (85T, 172110 115, 101,00
et Change in Fund 8alances {1.383,221.95) 336306 (6,165,413.21) B5,810.10  (208,966.53)  294,512.55 [£3,598,1%) TO,7T4.8% (7,384, 739.74)
Furd Balance - January 1 1,673 197,68 558,992.77 &, 788 BA5.83 290, 540,64 127, 497,85 251,952 &7 1,391,009, 78 P48,861.78 12,230, 948,58
Fund Balance - Decenber 31 289, 575.58 562,355.91 B2% 4T2.42 76,350 78 081,459,077 SOB,L65.43 1,347, 621,65 1,019, 636.47 4,845, 209,24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thess firancial statements.




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, Nerth Dakota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

ket Change in Fund Balamces - Total Goverrmental Funds

The change in net pesition reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the
current year,

Current Year Capital Outlay
Current Year Depreciation Expense

The proceeds of debt issuances are reported as financing sources in
governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance.

In the statement of net position, issuing debt increases lomg-term
liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities. Repayment
of debt principal is an expenditure in the goverrmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net pesition.
This is the amount by which repayment of debt exceeded debt proceeds,

Debt Proceeds
Repayment of Debt

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do mot reguire the
use of current financial resources and sre not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Net Increase in Compensated Absences Payable
Net Decrease in Interest Payable
Net Increase to Pension Expense

Some revenues reported on the statement of ectivities are mot reported
a5 revenues in the governmental funds since they de not represent
available resources to pey current expenditures.

Het Imcrease in Taxes Receivable
In the statement of activities, only the gain on the trade-in of capital
assets is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the result of this
transaction has no effect en financial resources. Thus, the met effect

on financial resources, (i.e., sales, trade-ins,) is te increase net
position,

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these finencial statements.

1,016,979.00

(622,452.00)

(10%,336.00)
454, BO9 44

(15, 839003
L6666
(634,976.00)

{1,470, 004.50)

3%4,527.00

(650, 345.34)

22,659.62

50,992.00

264,5610.58)

(1




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, Morth Dakota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Gowvernmental Funds

The change in pet position reported for goverrmental activities in the
statement of activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the
current year.

Current Year Capital Outlay
Current Year Depreciation Expense

The proceeds of debt issuances are reported as financing sources in
governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance.

In the statement of net position, issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities. Repayment
of debt principal is an expenditure in the goverrmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
This is the amount by which repayment of debt exceeded debt proceeds.

Debt Proceeds
Repayment of Debt

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and are not reported as expenditures
in goverrmental funds.

Net Increase in Compensated Absences Payable

Net Decrease in Interest Payable
Net Imncrease to Pension Expense

Some revenues reported on the statement of activities are not reported
as revenues in the governmental funds since they do not represent
available resources to pay current expenditures.

Net Increase in Taxes Receivable

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5,782,444 .00
(455,324.00)

(115,101.00)
411,859.469

52, 111.113
46,499.21
(290, 020.00)

(7,384, 739.74)

3,324,518.00

296,758.69

(295,631.90)

27,261.03

(2,033,231.92)




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2018

Major Enterprise Funds

Landfill Total
Mercer County Landfill Closure Enterprise
Landfill Loan Reserve Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 308,408.52 3D8,408.52
Restricted Assets:

Cash &3, BBT.TT 128,000, 00 171,887.77
Tetal Current Assets 308,408, 52 43, BBT.TT 128,000.00 480, 296,29
Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depr):

Land 2,9046.00 2,906.00

Machinery and Vehicles 13%,552.00 139,552.00
Total Moncurrent Assets 142,458.00 142, 458,00
Total Assets 450,866.52  43,B87.77  128,000.00 £22,754.29

Sre=adE =EE =l EEEEsss———
LIABI 1ES
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Landfill Closure and Postclesure Care Costs 171,366.00 171,3656.00
Compensated Absences 15,597.09 15,597.09
Total Liabilities 15,597.098 171,366.00 186,963.09
NET POSITION:
Het Investment in Capital Assets 142,458.00 142,458.00
Restricted 128, 000.00 128, 000.00
Unrestricted 292,811,437 (127,478.23) 165,333.20
Total Net Position 435,269.43 (127,4TB.23) 128,000.00 435, 791,20
SEsSEEEEEESSsScS==c=c==SoEEEE = SER=E=c ==alEsEs====x

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2017

Major Enterprise Funds

Landfill Total
Mercer County Landfill Closure Enterprise
Landfill Lean Reserve Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 289,357.11 289 ,357.11

Restricted Assets:

Cash 23,849.75  120,000.00 143,B49.75
Total Current Assets 289 357.1 23, BL9. TS 120,000.00 433, 205,85
Moncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets (net of sccumulated depr):

Land 2,906.00 2,906.00

Machinery and Vehicles 170,398.00 170,3%8.00
Total Momcurrent Assets 173,304.00 173,304 .00
Total Assets L62,661.11 23 ,B49. 75 120,000.00 606,510,845

TEEEESSs Zz========zTzIz == SEZZz===TEzoE=s
LIABILITIES
Moncurrent Liabilities:
Landfill Clogure and Postclosure Care Costs 164 160,00 164, 160,00
Compensated Absences : 11,801.21 1,801.21
Total Liabilities 11,801.27  164,160.00 175,961,211
BET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 173,304.00 173,304 .00
Restricted 120,000,00 120, 000.00
Unrestricted 277,555.90 (140,310.25) 137,245 .65
Total Net Position 450,859.90 (140,310.25) 120,000.00 430,549 .65

sSoz== TEE= =S —EmEs mE=

The accompanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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MERCER COUNMTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Major Enterprise Funds

Landfill Total
Mercer County Landfill Closure Enterprise
Landfill Loan Rezerve Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Sales and Services:

Landfill Fees 279 47317 279, 47317
Miscellaneous Charges 16,237.31 16,237.31
Total Operating Revenues 295, T10.48 295, 710.48
Operating Expenses:

Landfill Dperating 251,501.73 251,501.75
Depreciation 30,B46.00 30,846.00
Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 953.20 7, 205,00 8,159.20
Total Operating Expenses 283,300.95 7,206.00 £90,506.95
Operating Income (Loss) 12,409.53 (7,206.00) 5,203.53
Non- rati Revenues :

Interest 38.02 38.02
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 12,#&9‘.53_ (7, 147.98) 5,241.55
Transfers In 20,000.00 8,000.00 28,000.00
Transfers Out (2B,000.00) (28,000.,00)
Change in Wet Position (13,590.47) 12,832.02 &,000.00 5,241.55
Met Pesition - January 1 450,859.90 (140,310.25) 120,000.00 430,549 .65
Net Position - December 31 435,269.43 (127,47B.23) 128,000.00 435, 791,20

=== S=ESSEEEIaEEEE S s s ESSESaaeEs=c ===

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Major Enterprise Funds

Landfill Total
Mercer County Landfill Closure Enterprise
Landfill Loan Reserve Funds
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Landfill Fees 327, 24T A7 327, 2577
Miscellaneous Charges 20,945.27 20,945.27
Total Operating Revenues 348, 192,44 348,192,468
Operating Expenses:
Landfill Operating 274,579.57 276, 579.57
Depreciation 36,787.00 36,TBT.00
Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 25,652.86 7.308.00 32,960.86
Totel Operating Expenses 337.019.43 7.308.00 346 32T .43
Operating Income (Loss) 11,173.01 (7,308.00) 3,885.01
Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest 21.05 21.05
Change in Met Positien 11,173.01 (7,285.95) 3,885.06
Net Position - January 1 439,685,889 (133,023.30) 120,000.00 426,663.59

Het Position - December 31 4£50,859.90 (140,310.25)  120,000.00 £30,549.65

eSS rassssIDOoos -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Major Enterprise Funds

Landfill Total
Mercer County Landfill Closure Enterprise
Landfill Loan Reserve Funds
Cash flows from cperating sctivities:

Receipts from customers 279, 47317 279, 473.17

Other operating revenues 16, 237.31 16,237.31

Payments to suppliers and employees (248, 559.07) (248 ,659.0T)
Net cash provided (used) by

operating ectivities L7, 057.41 L7,0517.81
Cash flows from poncapital financing activities:

Transfers in 20,000.00 8,000.00 2B,000.00

Transfers out (28,000.00) (28,000.00)
Net cash provided (used) by moncapital

financing activities (28,000,003 20,000.00 8,000.00
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest income 38.02 38.02
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents 19,051.41 20,038.02 8,000.00 47,089.43
Cash and cash eguivalents, January 1 289, 357.11 23,849.75 120, 000.00 433, 20685
Cash and cash eguivalents, December 371 308, 408.52 43 BAT.TT 128,000.00 480, 294,29

ERwEpe— O L L T T T T app— =
Reconcilation of Operating Income (Loss) to Met
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) 12,409.53 (7,206.00) 5,203.53
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Increase in compensated absences 3,795.88 3,795.88
Depreciation expense 30,B46.00 30,846 .00
Provision for closure and postclosure care costs 7,206.00 ¥,206.00
Total adjustments 34 ,641.88 7,206.00 41,847 .88
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities &7,051.41 -0- =0- 47,051,861
e e s=ss=safEEEssssssso

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fimancial statements.
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Cash flows from cperating activities:
Receipts from customers
Other operating revenues
Payments to suppliers and employees

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Cash flow i sting activities:
Interest income

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1

Cash and cash eguivalents, December 31
Reconcilation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Increase in compensated absences
Depreciation expense
Provizion for closure and postclosure care costs

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Major Enterprise Funds

Landfill Total
Hercer County Landfill Closure Enterprise
Landfill Loan Reserwve Funds
327 24T AT 327,247 AT
20,945 27 20, 985,27
(297, 287.50) (297, 287.50)
50,904 .94 50,904.94
21.05 21.05
50,504 .96 21.05 50,925.99
238, 452.17 23,828.70 120,000.00 382,280.87
289 35T.11 23, 84975 120,000.00 £33, 206.85
SIS = SEEEESsSs==—==
11,173.01 (7,308.00) 3,.855.01
2,945 93 2,745 .93
36, T8T.00 35, TBT.00
7.,308.00 7,308.00
39,731.93 7,308.00 47,039.93
50,904 .94 -0- -0- 50,904 .94
EREEEIEERESSSSSssss=sS== = EEEEEES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Statement of Fiduciary Assetz and Lisbilities
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Agency
Funds
Aszetrs:
Cash and [nvestments 1,753,518, 27
SE=SEEEEmEEs=-——=
Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments 1.753,518.27
SEESESEEEE=———

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, Nerth Dakota

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Lisbilities
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Agency
Funds
Assets:
Cash and Investments 1,407,003.99
Lisbilities:
Due to Other Goverrments 1,407,003.99
ERENEmss -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MERCER COQUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Hotes to the Financial Statements
December 311, 2018 and 2017

Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Mercer County have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the government's accounting
policies are described bslow.

L. Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the activitiesz of the
county. The county has considered all potential component units for
which the county is financially accountable and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationships with the county
are such that exclusion would cause the county's financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete. The Government Accounting Standards Board
has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. This criteria includes appointing a voting majority of
an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the county to
impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on Mercer County.

Based on these criteria, the component unit discussed below is included
within the county's reporting entity because of the significance of its
operaticnal or financial relationship with the county.

Discretely Presented Component Unit: The component unit's column in the

basic financial statements include the financial data of the county'’s
component unit. This unit is reported in a separate column to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the county.

Mercer County Water Resource District: The Msrcer County Water Rescurce

District's governing board is appointed by the county’s governing beard.
The county’'s governing body has the autherity to disapprove, amend, or
approve the water resource district budget. The water resource districe
has the authority to issue its own debt.

The financial statements of the discretely presented component unit are

presented in the basic finaneial statements. Additional information may
be cbtained from the Mercer County Auditor, 1021 Arthur Street, Stanton,
ND 58571.

i4
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B. Basis of Presentaticn

Government-wide Financial Statements: The statement of net position and
the statement of activities display information about the primary
government, Mercer County and its component unit. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double-counting of internal actiwvities. These statements distinguish
between the governmental and business-type activities of the county.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or part by fees charged
to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each function of the county’s
goevernmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include
(a] fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered
by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operaticnal or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program rewvenues, including all
taxes, are presented as general revenues,

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide
information about the county’'s funds including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category - govermmental, proprietary
and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental funds and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds and
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services,
result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity
of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially egual values. Nonoperating revenues,
such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

The county reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the county’s primary operating fund. It accounts
for all financial resources of the general government, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

Building. This fund accounts for moneys set aside by the county to
provide funding for special building projects.

County Building. This fund accounts for the proceeds from a coal impact
loan, general obligation bonds and other funds set-aside for the
construction of a new addition te the county’'s courthouse and jail
facilitiesg,

Township Roads. This fund accounts for township road funds from the
State of North Dakcta used for the maintenance and repair of township
roads within the county.

County Road. This fund accounts for a special levy used to pay for road
crew salaries and major road construction costs for maintaining county
roads.

Aid to Secondary Roads. This fund accounts for a special levy for the
maintenance and repair of federal aid farm to market roads within the
county.

Healeh Insurance. This fund accounts for county contributions used for
the purpcse of providing employee health insurance.
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The county reports the following major enterprise funds:

Landfill. This fund accounts for the activities of the county’s
landfill site.

Landfill Loan. The county is required to maintain this fund to
accumulate resources to account for the clesure and postclosure care
costs of the landfill site.

Landfill Closure Reserve. The county is required to maintain this fund
to accumulate resources to account for the closure and postclosure care
costs of the landfill site.

The county reports the following fund type:

Agency Funds. These funds acecount for assets held by the county in a
custodial capacity as an agent on behalf of others. The county’'s agency
funds are used to account for various deposits of other governments.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Pund Financial Statements:
The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements
are reported using the economic rescurces measurement focus. These
financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash fleows take
place, Nonexchange transactions, in which the county gives (or
receives) wvalue without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations.

On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported
using the current fimancial rescurces measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available. The county considers all revenues
reported in the govermmental funds to be available if the revenues are
collected within sixty days after year-end. All revenues are censidered
to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the county funds certain programs
by a combination of specific cost-reimbursements grants and general

revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both
restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the
program. It is the county’'s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement

grant rescurces to such programs, and then by general revenues.

G




D. Casch, Cash Bguivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits, money
market accounts and highly liquid short-term investments with eriginal
maturities of three months or less.

Investments consist of certificates of deposit stated at cost.

E. Capital Assets

Capital assets include plant and equipment. Assets are repcrted in the
governmental activities column and the business-type activities column
in the government-wide financial statements. Assets are alsc reported
in the proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are defined by the
county as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more.
Such assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if
purchagsed or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market wvalue at the date of donation. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the valus of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays
for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during construction phase of capital
assets 1s not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 78 years
Machinery and Vehicles % to 10 years

F. Compensated Abgencesg

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leawve is reported in the
government-wide statement of net position. Compensation for unused
vacation and sick leave will be granted to all full-time employees upon
termination of employment with the county.

Compensated Absences. The county pays employees for any unused vacation
and 25% of sick leave accumulated at their current rate of pay upon
termination. Compensated absences represents the liability of the
county for these employee benefits.

G. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and octher
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental
activities statement of net position. Bond premiums, discounts and
issuance costs are recognized in the current period since the amounts
are not material.

In the fund financial statements, govermmental fund types recognize bond
premiums, discounts and issuance costs in the current period. The face
amount of the debt is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures.
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H. Pensicn

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of rescurces related to pensions, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
North Daketa Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS); additions
to/deductions from NDPERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by NDPERS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of emplovee contributicns) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

I. Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is
classified as "fund balance." Fund equity for all other reporting is
classified as "net position."®

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between
the current assets and current liabilitiss. In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise
a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the county is bound
to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those
funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonmspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amcunts
cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form
(i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash such as
inventories or prepaid expenses) or (b) legally or contractually
required to be maintained intaet (i.e., endowment funds).

Restricted - Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the county or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other govermments (i.e., funds restricted by state statute,
unspent bond proceeds, grants earned but not spent, debt covenants or
taxes raised for a specific purpose) .

Committed - Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be
used only for specific purpuses pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal action of the county commission through the adoption of a
regsolution. The county commission alse may modify or resecind the
commitment .

Assigned - Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are
constrained by the county’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but
are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned - Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual
amount when the balances do not meet any of the above critericn. The
county reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the general
fund. Negative fund balances may be reported in all funds.

Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund
balance are available for use for expenditures incurred, it is the
county’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted
amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance,
it is the county's policy teo use fund balance in the following order:

* Committed
* Assigned
* Unassigned

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and
liabilities. WNet investment in capital assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used (i.e., the amount that the county has not
spent] for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Net position is reported as restricted as described in the fund balance
gsection above. All other net pesition is reported as unrestricted,
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NHote 2

J. Interfund Transactions

In the governmental and proprietary fund statements, transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from
it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures
in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except reimbursements, are reported as
transfers.

In the government-wide financial statements, interfund transactions have
been eliminated.

K. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures (such as estimated useful lives in
determining depreciation expense}; accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

D SITS AND TNVESTMENT

In accordance with North Dakota Statutes, the county maintains deposits
at the depository banks designated by the governing board. A&all
depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System.

Deposits must either be deposited with the Bank of North Dakota or in
other financial institutions situated and doing business within the
state. Deposits, other than with the Bank of North Dakota, must be
fully insured or bonded. 1In lieu of a bond, a financial institution may

provide a pledge of securities equal to 110% of the deposits not covered
by insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes or bonds issued by the
United States government, its agencies or instrumentalities, all bonds
and notes guaranteed by the United States government, Federal Land Bank
bonds, bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness, insured
certificates of deposit, shares of investments companies registered
under the Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of
securities issued by the State of North Dakota, its boards, agencies or
instrumentalities or by any county, city, township, school district,
park district or any other political subdivision of the State of North
Dakota, whether payable from special revenues or supported by the full
faith and credit of the issuing body and bonds issued by another state
of the United States or other securities approved by the banking board.
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At December 31, 2018 the county’'s carrying amount of depoasits was
$6,446,236 and the bank balance was $6,827,808. Of the bank balance,
$600,013 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance. Of the remaining
balance, 55,317,126 was collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution’s agent in the government’s name and
$910,670 was deposited with the Bank of North Dakota, which does not
provide FDIC coverage or security pledges.

At December 31, 2017 the county's carrying amount of deposits was
$7.304,103 and the bank balance was $7,461,066. OFf the bank balance,
$600,013 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance. Of the remaining
balance, $4,462,38% was collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution’s agent in the government’s name and
$2,397,664 was deposited with the Bank of North Dakota, which does not
provide FDIC coverage or security pledges.

Credit Risk

The county may invest idle funds as authorized in North Dakota Statutes,
as follows:

(1) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a
direct obligation insured or guaranteed by, the treasury of the
United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities or
organizations created by an act of Congress.

(2) Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a
financial institution in which the underlying securities for the
agreement tec repurchase are of the type listed above.

(2} Certificates of deposit fully insured by the federal deposit
insurance corporation.

(a) Obligations of the State.

At December 31, 2018 the county held certificates of deposit in the
amount of $3,147,207, which are all considered deposits.

At December 31, 2017 the county held certificates of deposit in the
amount of $3,072,920, which are all considered deposits.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The county does not have a limit on the amount the county may invest in
any one issuer,

Hote 3 RESTRICTED CASH

Certain assets of the Mercer County landfill loan fund and landfill
closure reserve fund are classified as restricted because their use is
restricted by variocus agreements. This amount consists of cash held by
the county at the Union State Bank.
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Note 5

Hote &

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due the county at December 31. MNo
allowance has been established for estimated uncollectible accounts
receivable,

TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable represent the past two years of uncollected current and
delinguent taxes. No allowance has been established for uncollectible
taxes and special assessment receivables,

The county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied
in the county for all taxing authorities. Any material tax collections
are distributed after the end of each month.

Property taxes are levied as of January 1. The property taxes attach as
an enforceable lien on property on January 1 and may be paid in two
installments. The first installment includes one-half of the real
estate taxes and all the special assessments and the second installment
is the balance of the real estate taxes. The first installment is due
by March 1 and the second installment is due by October 15. A 5%
discount is allowed if all taxes and special assessments are paid by
February 15. After the due dates, the bill becomes delinguent and
penalties are assessed.

Most property owners choose to pay property taxes and special
assessments in a single payment on or before February 15 and receive
the discount on the property taxes.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/F ES

Interfund receivables/payables are created by a negative cash balance in
various funds. The amounts shown as interfund payables represent the
amount of negative cash in the funds. Interfund receivables/payables
for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Receivable Payvable
Fund Fund
December 31, 2018
General Fund 49 655 .59
Special Vehicle 11,141.01
Mercer County Task Force 38,514.58
December 31, 2017
General Fund i2,005.12

Mercer County Task Force i2,005.12




Note 7

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes

in capital assets for

ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:
2018
Balance
January 1 Increases Decreasgses

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not
being depreciated:

Land
Construction in
Progress

Total

Capital assets
being depreciated:

Buildings
Machinery & Vehicles

Total

Less accumulated
depreciaticon for:

Buildings
Machinery & Vehicles

Total

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Governmental Actiwvities
Capital Assets, Net

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not
being depreciated:

Land
Construction in
Progress

Total

Capital assets
being depreciated:

Buildings
Machinery & Vehicles

Total

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings
Machinery & Vehicles

Total

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

the years

Balance
December 31

51,000 51,000
9,613,894 £59, 653 10,273,547
T 9,664,854 =  &59,655 10,273,547 T 51,000
2,536,000 10,273,547 12,809,547
4,922,614 516,518 254,480 5,144,652
1,090,043 170,793 1,260,836
2,798,344 451,659 186,280 3,063,723
3, BEE, 387 622,452 156, 280 4,324,559
3,570,227 10,167,813 108,200 13,629,640
13,235,121 10,827,266 10,381,747 13,680,640
1 1 1 1 1 3 0 F & f F R Y F 3 ¥ 7 7 3§ C t 3 £ 3 5§ F ¥ 3§ 4 -+ p— -+ 3 -+ P F
2017
Balance Balance
January 1 Increases Decreases _December 31
51,000 51,000
4,085,700 5,518,1%4 9,613,894
4,138,700 5,510, 19X T O,EE4,B93
2,536,000 2,536,000
4,794,464 269,850 141,700 4,922,814

— 7,330,464 ~— Z&9,850 " I41I,700 -~ 7,458,614

1,056,230
2,508,933

33,813

425,511 136,100

3,565,163 ~ 459,324 ~13§,100 ~— 3,888,387

1,090,043
2,798, 344

3,765,301 (1859,474) 5,600

2,570,227

7,912,001

ARSI FaEEsESm=o=

5,328,720 5,600
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2018

Balance Balance
January 1 Increases Decreases _December 31
Business-type Activities:
Capital assets not
being depreciated:

Land 2,906 2,906

Capital assets
being depreciated:

Buildings 226,344 226,344
Machinery & Vehicles £52,588 B9, B91 462,697
Total ' 778,932 BE3,B851 685,041

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings 226,344 226,344
Machinery & Vehicles 382,190 30,846 B9,891 323,145
Total 608,534 30,846 89,891 549,489

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 170,39E (30,848) 139,552

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net 173,304 (30,848) 0= 142,458

2017
Balance Balance

January 1 Increaces Decreases _December 33
Business-type Activities:

Capital assets not
being depreciated:

Land 2,906 2,906

Capital assets
being depreciated:

Buildings 226, 344 226,344
Machinery & Vehicles 552,588 £52 588
Total 778,932 T 778,832

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings 226,344 226,344
Machinery & Vehicles 345,403 36,787 382,190
Total 571,747 36,787 608,534
Total capital assets 7
being depreciated, net 207,185 (36,787} 170,398
Governmental Activities =
Capital Assets, Het 210,091 i36,787) -0- 173,304
TECDEENDEEEEDE SESESSESoSSSS SSSSSoSo——= —S—————S===EE
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Note 8

MNote 5

Note 10

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the county
as follows for the years ended December 31:

2018 2017

GCovernmental Activities:

General Government a7,0E7 3,400
Public Safety 161,382 26,731
Highways and Public Improve. 351,833 350,383
Health and wWelfare 1,733 1,733
Congervation and Econ. Dev. 10,417 7,077
Total Depreciation Expense £22,452 459,324

Business-type Activities:
Landfill i0, B46 36,787

—+ 3 F 4 5111 ] SSESsEENEE=

IRTEREST PAYABLE

Interest payable consists of interest on long-term liabilities accrued
to December 31, 2018 and 2017.

UNAVAILABLE REVENUE

Unavailable revenue on the fund financial statements consists of amounts
for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Under the modified
acerual basis of accounting, such amounts are measurable but not
available.

Unavailable revenue on the government-wide finmancial statements consists
of prepaid property taxes.

CAPITAL, LEASES PAYARLE
The county has entered into the following lease agreements.

Lease-purchase of JD 772D motor grader

due in annual installments of 55, 584.53,

which inecludes interest at 2.5% through

February 12, 2021 and a balloon payment

of $157,B00.00 on February 12, 2022. 158, 740.00

Lease-purchase of (3) 2017 Chevy Tahoes
due in a final installment of $40,271.94
on July 7, 2019; interest is at 5.14%. 38,3325.,98

Leage-purchase of (3) 2018 Chevy Tahoes
due in annual installments of $37,986.49
through May 16, 2020; interest is at 4.29%. 71,34%.51

Total 268,425 49
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Thesge lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting
purposes {(title transfers at the end of the lease term). The following
is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital
leases, and the net present value of the minimum lease payments at
December 31, 2018;

Year Ending

December 31 Payments
2019 83,842.96
2020 43,571.02
2021 5,584.53
2022 157,800.00
Total minimum lease payments 290,798.51
Less: amount representing interest (22.373.02)

Present value of future minimum
lease payments 268,425 49

Mote 11 LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities. During the years ended December 31,
20182 and 2017, the feollowing changes occurred in liabilities reported in
the long-term liabilities of the county:

Governmental Activities:

2018
Balance Balance Due Within
January 1 Increases pDecreases December 31 _One Year
Capital Leases 235,099 109,336 76,010 268,425 74,832
General Obligation Bonds 3,400,000 140,000 3,260,000 145,000
Coal Impact Loan 6,359,530 278,890 6,080,640 287,373
Compensated Absences * 523,928 15,839 539,767
Total 10,518,557 125,175 494,900 10,148,832 507,205
=E=EEEEE=EEE=EEE FESSFFESEEEE I S N By S A S o s E <+ + + - -1 T [ | 3= ¥ F ¥ ¥+ ¥ T
2017
Balance Balance Due Within
January 1 Increases Decreases December 31 One Year
Capital Leases 161,200 115,101 41,202 235,099 i@, 023
General Obligation Bonds 3,500,000 100,000 3,400,000 140,000
Coal Impact Loan 6,630,188 270,658 6,359,530 278,890
Compensated Absences * 471,817 52,111 523,928
Total 10,763,205 167,212 411,860 10,518,557 456,913
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Business-Type Activities (Proprietary Funds) :

2018

Balance Balance Due Within
January 1 Increases Decreases December 31 One Year

Compensated Absences * 11,801 3,796 -0- 15,597 -0-
AEFEEETDoDEEES -+ 3 3 F F -+ iy e e el e s EEEEEN Y F ¥ ¥ T FF
2017
Balance Balance Due Within

January 1 Increases Decreases December 31  One Year

Compensated Absences * 8,856 2,945 ~0- 11,801 -D-
=========== ==—=—=—===== =SSS=S=S=ST=S=Z STSCSCSSESEEN S=S==——=====
* The change in compensated absences is shown as a net change because
changes in salary prohibit exact calculations of increases and
decreases.

Cutstanding debt at December 31, 2018 consists of the following:
General Obligation Debt. General chligation debt is a direct obligation

and pledges the full faith and credit of the government. General
obligation debt outstanding at December 31, 2018, is as follows:

General Obligation Bends. The county has issued general obligation
bonds to provide funds for cthe purpose of courthouse and jail expansion.
General cbligation bonds outstanding at December 31, 2018 are as follows:

$3,500,000.00 General Obligation Correction

Center Bonds, Series 2016 due in annual

installments of %145,000.00 to $23%,000.00

through May 1, 2036; interest is at 2% to 3%, 3,260,000._00

The annual reguirements to amortize the outstanding general cbligaticn
bonds are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Principal Interest
2019 145,000 86,425
2020 145, 000 B3,525
2021 150, 200 B0,575
2022 150, 000 77,575
2023 155, 000 74,525
2024-2028 B50, 000 311,238
2029-2033 985, 000 177,825
2034-2036 680,000 31,050

Total 3,260,000 922,738




Note 12

Coal Impact Loan. The county has entered into a coal impact loan to
provide funding for the construction of a new addition to the county
courthouse office buildin% and jail facilities. Payments are withheld
from the county's share of coal severance taxes. Should coal severance
payments to the county be discontinued before the loan is repaid, the
loan would be forgiven as provided in NDCC 57-62-03. Ceoal trust fund
loan outstanding at December 31, 2018 is as follows:

$7,000,000.00 loan dated August 1, 2015 with
monthly payments of $38,B821.83 through
July 1, 2035, which include interest at 3%. 6,080,640.20

The annual reguirements to amortize the outstanding coal impact loan are
as follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Principal Interest
2019 287,273 178,489
2020 296,113 165,748
2021 305,120 160,742
2022 314,401 151,461
2023 323,983 141,899
2024-2028 1,773,754 555,555
2029-2033 2,060,423 268,887
2034-2035 719,493 18,122
Total 6,080,640 1,644,904
SEEsEEEEEsEEEEEEE & 3 F 3T 0 0 0 F 3 & 3
TRANSFERS
The following is a reconciliation between transfers in and transfers
out as reported in the basic financial statements for the year ended
December 31:
Fund Transfer In Transfer Out
December 31, 2018
General T65,235.00
Building 500,000.00
CD Interest 165,235.00
Passbook Savings Interest 100, 000.00
County Road 1,778,444 .38
Uncrganized Road 400,000.,00
State Highway 1,028,444 .38
Aid to Secondary Roads 350,000.00
Special Vehicle 75,000.00
Search and Rescue 50,000.00
General Fund 25,000.00
Mercer County Task Force 176,000.00
General Fund 376,000.00
Weed Control Special 4,000.00
Weed Control 4,000.00
County Agent 50,000.00
General 50,000.00

To subsidize expenditures.

Landfill Closure Reserve g,000.00
Landfill Loan 20,000.00
Landfill 28,000.00

To subsidize the expenses related to the closure and postclosure care

costs related to the county's landfill and to fund landfill closure
regserve.
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December 31, 2017

Special Vehicle 7.,907.81
Mercer County Task Force 357,000.00
Social Services 8,370.12
County Agent 38,000.00
General Fund 411,277.93
County Road 1,493,551.04
Unorganized Road 3176,459.42
State Highway 1,017,091.62
Ald to Secondary Roads 100, 000.00
Weed Control Special 4,000.00
Weed Control 4,000.00

To subsidize expenditures.

CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require the county to place a
final cover om its county landfill site when it stops accepting waste
and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site
for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care
cost will be paid only near or after the date the landfill stops
accepting waste, the county reports a portion of these closure and
postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on
landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The 3171, 366
reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at December
31, 2018, represents the cumulative amounts reported to date based on
the use of &4 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill. The
county will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and
postclosure care of 598,034 as the remaining estimated capacity is
filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all
closure and postclosure care in 2018. The county expects to close the
landfill in the year 2024. BActual cost may be higher due to inflarion,
changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The county is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make
annual contributions to a separate fund to finance closure and
postclosure care. The county is in compliance with these requirements,
and, at December 31, 2018, cash of $171,888 is held for this purpose.
This is reported as restricted assets on the statement of net position.
The county expects that future inflation costs will be paid from
interest earnings on these annual contributions. However, if interest
earnings are inadequate or additional postclosure care requirements are
determined (due to changes in technoclogy or applicable laws or
regulations, for example), these costs may need to be covered by charges
to future landfill users or from future tax revenue,
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NHote 14 RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The county is also responsible for levying a property tax for the Mercer
County Historical Society and Commission on Aging. However, the
county's accountability for these entities does not extend beyond

levying the tax. In 2018 and 2017, the county remitted

$8,272.59 and

$9,883.00 to the Historical Society and $93,389.40 and $100,781.77 to

the Commission on aging, respectively.

Note 15 RISE MANAGEMENT

Mercer County is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts;
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;

injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

In 1986, state agencies and political subdivisions of the State of North
Dakota joined together to form the Worth Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund
(NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk

management and insurance program for the state and over

2,000 political

subdivisions. The county pays an annual premium tc NDIRF for its
genaeral liability, automobile and public assets insurance coverage. The
coverage by NDIRF is limited to losses of $2,000,000 per occurrence for
general liability and automcbile; and 53,965,476 for public assets.

The county also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund
and the State Bonding Fund. The county pays an annual premium to the
Fire and Tornade Fund tec cover property damage to buildings and personal

for this cowverage.

property. Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating
replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The
Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier
for losses in excess of $1,000,000 per occurrence during a 12 month
period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the county with a
blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of 52,000,000 for its
employees. The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium

The county has worker's compensation with the Department of Workforce

health and accident insurance.

coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
Note 16 BENSION PLANS

1. Defined Contribution Pension Plans

The county's contributions to CUMA for the fiscal years
31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were 54,352, %4,335 and $3,9183,
Contributions to Investment Center for the fiscal vears
31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were 55,777, 55,621 and 56,093,
Contributions to Nationwide for the fiscal years ending
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Safety and Insurance; and purchases commercial insurance for employee

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance

The county provides benefits for all of its full-time employees through
a defined contribution plan with a choice of the following three plans;

CUNA, Investment Center and Nationwide Retirement Solutions. In a
defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed
te the plan plus investment earnings. The county matches the employee’s

contribution to the plan up to a maximum of 10% of the employee’s salary.

ending December
respectively.
ending December
respectively.
Decembear 31,

2018, 2017 and 2016 were 57,889, 513,681 and 518,696, respectively.




2. North Dakota Public Emplovess Retirement System (Main Svstem)

The following brief description of NDPERS is provided for general
information purposes only. Participants should refer to NDCC Chapter
54-52 for more complete information.

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
that covers substantially all employees of the State of North Dakota,
its agencieg and wvarious participating peolitical subdivisions. NDBERS
provides for pension, death and disability benefits. The cost to
administer the NDPERS plan is financed by investment income and
contributions.

Responsibility for administration of the NDPERS benefits program is
assigned to a Board comprised of nine members. The Board consists of a
Chairman, who is appointed by the Governor; one member appointed by the
Attorney General; one member appointed by the State Health Officer:
three members elected by active membership of the NDPERS system; cne
member elected by the retired public employees; and two members of

the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the legislative
management .

Pengeion Benefits

Benefits are get by statute. NDPERS has no provision or policies with
respect to automatic and ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases.
Members of the Main System are entitled to unreduced monthly pension
benefits beginning when the sum of age and years of credited service
equal or exceed 85 (Rule of 85), or at normal retirement age (65). For
members hired on or after January 1, 2016 the Rule of 85 will be
replaced with the Rule o¢f 50 with a minimum age of 60. The monthly
pension benefit is equal to 2.00% of their average monthly salary, using
the highest 36 months out of the last 1B0 months of service, for each
year of service. The plan permits early retirement at ages 55-64 with
three or more years of service.

Members may =lect to receive the pension benefits in the form of a
single life, joint and survivor, term-certain annuity, or partial lump
sum with ongoing annuity. Members may elect to receive the value of
their accumulated contributions, plus interest, as a lump sum
distribution upon retirement or termination, or they may elect to
receive their benefits in the form of an annuity. For each member
electing an annuity, total payment will not be less than the members’
accumulated contributions plus interest.

Death and Disability Benefits

Death and disability benefits are set by statute, If an active member
dies with less than three years of service for the Main System, a death
benefit egqual to the value of the member’s accumulated contributions,
plus interest, is paid to the member's beneficiary. If the member has
earned more than three years of credited service for the Main System,
the surviving spouse will be entitled to a single payment refund,
life-time monthly payments in an amount egqual to 50% of the member's
accrued normal retirement benefit, or monthly payments in an amount
egqual to the member’s accrued 100% Joint and Survivor retirement benefit
if the member had reached normal retirement age prior to date of death.
If the surviving spouse dies before the member’s accumulated pension
benefits are paid, the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse’s
designated beneficiary.
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Eligible members who become totally disabled after a minimum of 180 days
of service, receive monthly disability benefits egqual to 25% of their
final average salary with a minimum benefit of $100. To gqualify under
this section, the member has to become disabled during the period of
eligible employment and apply for benefits within one year of
termination. The definition of disabled is set by the NDPERS in the
North Dakota Administrative Code,

Refunds of Member Account Balance

Upcn terminaticn, if a member of the Main System is not vested (is not
€5 or does not have three years of service), they will receive the
accumulated member contributions and vested employer contributions, plus
interest, or may elect to receive this amount at a later date. If the
member has wvested, they have the option of applving for a refund or can
remain as a terminated vested participant. If a member terminated and
withdrew their accumulated member contribution and is subseguently
reemployed, they have the option of repurchasing their previous service.

Member and Employer Contributions

Member and employer contributions paid to NDPERS are set by statute and
are established as a percent of covered compensation. Member
contribution rates are 7% and employer contribution rategs are 7.12%

of covered compensation.

The member’s account balance includes the vested employer contributions
equal to the member’s contributions to an eligible deferred compensation
plan. The minimum member contribution is $25 and the maximum may not
exceed the following:

1 to 12 monthes of service -
Greater of one percent of monthly salary or $25

13 to 25 months of service -
Greater of two percent of monthly salary or 525

25 to 36 months of service -
Greater of three percent of monthly salary or $25

Longer than 36 months of service -
Greater of four percent of monthly salary or $25

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense; and Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2018, Mercer County reported a liability of 55,562,481
for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of that date. The county's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on the county's share of covered payroll
in the Main System pension plan relative to the covered payrell of all
participating Main System employers. At June 30, 2017 the county's
proportion was 346070 percent, which was a decrease of .000216 from

its proportion measured as of June 30, 20le.




For the year ended December 31, 2018 the county recognized pension
expence of 5918,854. At December 31, 2018 the county reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, from the following sources:

Deferrad Deferred
Cutflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected
and actual experience 33,063 27,101
Changes in assumptions 2,280,992 125,460
Het difference betwsen
projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 74,811
Changes in proportion and
differences between employer
contributions and proporticnate
share of contributions 272,172 1
County contributions
subsequent to the
measurement date (sse bslow) 272,030
Total 2,933,068 — 182,882

$272,030 reported as deferred cutflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from county contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended December 31, 20139,

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of rescurces related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year ended

June 30:
2018 561,793
2020 64 443
2021 586,135
2022 464,482
2023 231,623
Thereafter 1]

Retuarial agsumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2017
actuarial valuation was determined usin? the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement :

Inflation 3.50%
Salary increases Service at
Beginning of Year Increase Rate

o 15.00%

1 10.00%

2 B.00%
hge *

Under 36 8.00%

36 - 40 7.50%

41 - 439 6.00%

50+ 5.00%

* Age-based salary increase rates apply for
employees with three or more years of service.

Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of investment expenses.
Cost-of-living adjustments MNone




For active members, inactive members and healthy retirees, mortality
rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Takle set
back two years for males and three years for females, projected
generationally using the SS5A 2014 Intermediate Cost scale from 2014.
For disabled retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000
Disabled Retiree Morality Table with ages set back one year for males
(not set back for females) multiplied by 125%.

The actuarial assumptions used were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study completed in 2015. They are the same as the

assumptions used in the July 1, 2017, funding actuarial valuation for
NDPERS.

As a result of the 2015 actuarial experience study, the NDPERS Board
adopted several changes to the actuarial assumptions effective July 1,
2015. This includes changes to the mortality tables, disability
incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary
scale, and percent married assumption.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net pension
plan investment expense and inflation] are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in the fund's target asset allocation are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic Eguity 31% 6.05%
International Eguity 21% 6.70%
Private Eguity 5% 10.20%
Domestic Fixed Income 17% 1.43%
International Egquity Income 5% -0.45%
Global Real Assets 20% 5.16%
Cash Equiwvalents 1% 0.00%

Discount rate. For PERS, GASE No. &7 includes a specific requirement
for the discount rate that is used for the purpose of the measurement of
the Total Pension Liability. This rate considers the ability of the
System to meet benefit obligations in the future. To make this
determination, employer contributions, employee contribution, benefit
payments, expenses and investment returns are projected into the future.
The current employer and employee fixed rate contributions are assumed
to be made in each future year. The Flan Net Position {assets) in
future years can then be determined and compared to its obligatiomn to
make benefit payments in those years. In vears where assets are not
projected to be sufficient to meet benefit payments, which is the case
for the PERS plan, the use of a municipal bond rate is reguired.
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The Single Discount Rate (SDR) is eguivalent to applying these two rates
te the benefits that are projected to be paid during the different time
pericds. The SDR reflects (1) the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments (during the period in which the fiduciary net
position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) and (2) a
tax-exempt municipal bhond rate based on an index of 20-vyear general
cbligation bonds with an average AR credit rating as of the measuremsnt
date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term
expected rate of return are not met) .

The pensicn plan’'s fiduciary net position was projected to be sufficient
toc make all projected future benefit payment payments through the year
2061, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to projected bensfit payments through the year
2061. and the municipal bond rate was applied to all benefit payments
after that date. For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate
of return on pension plan investments is 7.75%; the municipal bond

rate is 3.56%; and the resulting Single Discount Rate is 6.44%,

Sensitivity of the county’'s proportionate share of the net pension
liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
county’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 6.44 percent, as well as what the county’'s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
caleculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (5.24
percent} or l-percentage-point higher (7.44 percent) than the current
rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
{5.44%) (6._44%) (7.44%)
The county's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability 7.551,238 5,562,481 3,907,918

Pengion plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the
pension plan‘s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NDPERS financial report.
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanten, Korth Daketa

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Fimal Positive
Budget Budget Actual [(Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes 1,762, 713.00 1,742, 7T13.00 1,712, 907.48 (29,805.52)
Licenses, Permits and Fees 13,900.00 13,900.00 9,931.23 (3,968.77)
Intergovernmental 3,346, 873.9%% 3,346 ,873.9% 3,203,809.40 (143 ,064.58)
Charges for Services 543,490.00 543,490.00 3&7,250.67 (176,239.33)
Hiscel laneous 149,225.00 149,225.00 255, 763.73 106,538.73
Total Revenues 5,796,201.96 5,796,201.95 5, 549,662.51 (246,539.45)
Expenditures:
Current:
General Gowvernment 3,252,128.00 3,128B,776.00 3,128,776.00
Public Safety 2,138,062.00 2,255,%47.31 2,255,947.31
Health and Welfare 190, 600.00 189,065 .49 189 ,085.49
Culture and Recreation 55, 000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00
Conser. and Economic Dvipmnt. 9,330.00 14, 572.97 16,572.97
Other 45, 272.00 52,616.80 52,4156_80
Capital Outlay 32,568.00 32,548.00
Debt Serwvice:
Principal 278, 890.07 278,8%90.07 275, 8590.07
Interest 186,971.89 186,971.89 185,971.89
Total Expenditures 6,156,233.96  &,194,188.53 4,194 ,188.53
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (350,032,003 (397, 985.57) (644 ,526.02) (246,539.45)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In T&5,250.00 765,250.00 765,235.00 {15.00)
Transfers Out (455,200.00) ¢451,000.00)  (451,000.00)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 310,050.00 314,250.00 314,235.00 (15.00)
Net Charge in Fund Balances (&% F82.00) (B3,736.57y (330,291.02) (246,554.45)
Fund Balance - January 1 289 ,575.68 2B9,975.68 289 975,68
Fund Balance - December 31 239,993 .68 206,239, 11 (40,315,342 (246,554 .45)




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, Morth Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance with

Finmal Budget
Original Fimal Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Megative)

Revenues :

Taxes T30,000.00 T30,000.00 663 ,031.41 (B&6,P68.59)
Licenses, Permits and Fees 12,900.00 12,%900.00 11,955.39 (944.61)
Intergovernmental 3,325,139 3,325,113.96 3,591,148.42 266,034 .46
Charges for Services 489,564 .00 4BT 564 .00 413,524.25 (76,039.75)
Miscellansous 20,800.00 20,800.00 242 ,143.83 221,343 .83
Total Revenues 4,598, 3T7.96 & 598,377.96  4,921,803.30 323,425.34
Expenditures:

Current:

General Government 2,B87,357.00 3,058,078.BB 3,039,016.86 19,062.02

Public Safety 1,949,553.00 2,107, 27419 2,107,274.19

Health and Welfare 179, 37900 187 ,560.98 187,560.98

Culture and Recreation 55,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00

Conser. and Econcmic Dvipmnt. 9,394.00 14,295.17 14,295.17

Other 42,991.00 26, 73816 26, 73816

Debt Service:

Principal 270,657.75 270, 657.75 270,657,735

Interest 195, 204.21 195, 204 .21 195,204 .21
Total Expenditures 5,609,535.96 5,912, B09.34 5,B93,Ti7.32 19,062.02
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures €1,011,158.00) ¢1,314,431.38)  (971,5944.02) 342,487 36
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers In 200, 000.00 200,000.00 (200,000.00)
Transfers Out (400,621.00%  (400,621.00)  (411,277.93) (10,456.93)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (200,521.003) (200,621.00) (411,277.93)  (210,656.93)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fumnd Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

1,211, 779.00) 1,515,052.38) (1,383,221.95)  131,830.43
1,673,197.63  1,673,197.63  1,673,197.63
481,418.63 158, 145.25 289,975.68 131,830.43



MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, NMorth Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Township Roads Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance with

Final Budget
Origimal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental &0,000.00 80, 000. 00 B5,810.10 5,810.10
Expendi tures:
Current:
Highways and Public Improve. -0-
Wet Change in Fund Balances 80,000.00 80,000.00 85,810.10 5,810.10
Fund Balance - January 1 290,540,866 290,540,656 290,540,566
Fund Balance - December 31 370,5460.66 370,540.66 376,350.76 5,810.10
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MERCER COUNTY
| Stanton, North Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
County Road Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Fimal Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Hegative)
Revenses:
Taxes 484 000,00 484 000,00 469, 702.79 (14,297,213
Licenses, Permits and Fees &0,000.00 40, 000.00 3&,680.00 (23,320.00)
Intergovernmental 1,129,980.00 1,129,980.00 L5, 251,65 (5653, T38.35)
Charges for Services 230, 700.00 230, 700.00 162,033,459 (68, 666.51)
Mizcel laneous 1040, 0040 . 00 100, 000, 00 100,000,003
Total Revenues 2,004, 680.00 2,004, 580.00 1,136 657.93 (B70,022.07)
Expenditures:
Current:

Highways and Public Improve. 3,558,170.00 3,558,170.00 2,457,320.91 1,090,B49.09
Capital Outlay 243,000.00 243 ,000,00 209,885.00 33,115.00
Debt Serwvice:

Principal 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,530.00 470.00

Interest 5,000.00 5,000.00 &, 054 .53 Q45 4T
Total Expenditures 3,B08,170.00 3,808,170.00 2,682, 790.44 1,125,379.56

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenucs

Over Expenditures {1,803,490.00) (1,B03,490.00) (1,548,132.51) 255,357.49
Other Financing Sources:

Transfers In 1,B28,502.00 1,B28,602.00 1,77B,444.38 (50,157.62)
Net Change in Fund Balances 25, 112.00 25, 112.00 230,311.87 205, 199_BT

Fund Balance - January 1 (B1,469.07)  (B1,469.07)  (B1,469.07)

Fund Balance - December 31 (56,357.07) (56,357.07) 148, 842,80 205, 19%.87




Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees
Intergovernmental

Charges for Services
Miscel laneous

Total Revenues

Expendi tures:

Current:

Highways and Public Improve.
Capital Qutlay

Debt Service:

Principal

Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess {(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

MERCER COUNTY
Sranton, Morth Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
County Road Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance with

Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Eudget Actual (Hegative)
420,000.00 420,000.00 356, 446,79 (53,553.21)
&0,000.00 &0, 000.00 &5, 626_B5 5,626.85
1,518,550.00 1,518,550.00 1,180,149 47 (335,400.53)
202,000.00 202,000.00 113,925.688 (BB, 074.12)
L1B.47 L18.47
2,200,550.00 2,200,550.00 1,725,567.45 (473,982.54)
4, BAT BOD.00 &, BBT,BO0O.00 3,315,340.90 1,572,459.10
143,000.00 143,000.00 108, 160.00 34, 840,00
2,000.00 2, 000.00 930.00 1,070.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 &, 654 .53 34547
5,037, 800.00 5,037,8B00.00 3,429,085.43 1, 608,7i14.57
(2,837,250.00) (2,837,250.00) (1,702,517.97) 1,134, 732.03
2,648, 417.00 2, 448,417.00 1,493,551.04 (954,865 _94)
(388,833.00) (388,833.00) (208,966.93) 179, B66.07

127,497.86 127,497.86 127,497 _B&

(261,335.14)  (261,335.14)  (B1,469.07)  179,B&6.07

5%




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Aid to Secondary Fumds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with

Fimal Budget
Criginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues :
Taxes 338,850.00 338,860.00 333,554.35 (5,305.65)
Intergovernmental 55,459.00 £5,465.00 ¥r,500.28 12,031.28
Total Rewenues 404 ,329.00 406 ,329.00 411,054.63 6,725.63
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and Public Improve. -0-
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 404 329,00 404, 329.00 411,054,463 &, T25.63
Other Financi Uses):
Transfers Out (400,389.00) (400,389.00) (350,000.00) 50,38%.00
Net Change in Fund Balances 3,940.00 3,940.00 61,054.63 57.114.63
Fund Balance - January 1 508,565 .42 508, 565.42 508,465,642
Fund Balance - December 31 512,405.42 512,405.42 569,520.05 57, 114,63




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Aid to Secondary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Fimal Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Megative)
Revenues:

Taxes 280, 000.00 280,000.00 257,344 .23 (28,855.77)

Intergovernmental 114, 470.00 114,470.00 105,168.32 (9,301.68)
Total Revenues 394, 470.00 394 &T0.00 356,512.55 (37,957.45)
Expenditures:

Current:

Highways and Public [mprove. -0-
Excess (Deficiency) of Rewvenues

Over Expenditures 394 ,4T0.00 394 ,470.00 356,512.55 (37,957.45)
Other Financing (Uses):

Transfers Out (609,000.00) (&09,000.00y (100,000.00) 509, 000.00
Met Change in Fund Balances (214,530.00) (214,530.00) 256,512.55 £71,042.55
Fund Balance - January 1 251,952.87 251,952.87 251,952.87
Fund Balance - December 31 37, 42287 3T, 422.87 S08,465.42 471,042.55%




Revenues:
Miscel | aneous

Expenditures:
Current:
General Gowvermment

Met Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance -

January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Health Insurance Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Hegative)
1,370,000.00 1,370,000.00 1,460,482.10 90,482.10
1,200,000.00 1,422 364.26 1,422,364 .26
170,000.00 (52,364 .26) 38,117.84 90,482 10
1,347,421.65 1, 347,421.65  1,347,421.65
1,517, 421.65 1,295,057.39  1,385,539.49 o0,482.10
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Rewvenues:
Hiscel laneous

Expendi tures:

Current:
General Government

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, Morth Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Health Insurance Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Fimal Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Megative)

1,006,000.00 1,006,000.00 1,387,636.46 381,636,456

1,200,000.00  7,431,234.59 1,431,234.59

(194,000.00) (&25,234.59) (43,598.13) 381,636.46

1,391,019.78  1,391,019.78  1,391,019.78

1,197, 019. 78 965, TB5.19  1,347,421.65 381,636,465
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules
December 31, 2018 and 2017

SUMMARY OF STIGNIFICANT BUDGET POLICIE

Annually, the board of county commissioners provides each office a
department budget. The departments complete their budget and file it
with the county auditor. Based upon the departmental budget requests
and other financial information, the county auditor prepares the
preliminary county budget. The budget is prepared for the general and
special revenue funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
preliminary budget includes the proposed expenditures and the means of
fipnancing them. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

The board of county commissicners holds a public hearing where any
taxpayer may testify in favor or against any proposed expenditures or
tax levies requested in the preliminary budget. After the budget
hearing and on or before the Octcber meeting, the board adopts the final
budget and shall determine the amount of taxes that shall be levied for
county purposes and shall levy all such taxes in specifiec amounts. No
expenditure shall be made or liability incurred in excess of the total
appropriation by fund, except for transfers as authorized by the North
Dakora Century Code Section 11-23-07. However, the board of county
commissioners may amend the budget, except for property taxes, during
the year for any revenues and appropriations not anticipated at the time
the budget was prepared. The budget amendments must be approved by the
board and the approval must be noted in the proceedings of the board.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE

The governing board approved the following amendments to the county's
budgets for the years ending:

December 31, 2018

Original Amended
Budget Amendment Budget
Appropriations
Ganeral Fund 6,156,234 37,955 6,194,189
Special Revenue Funds
Health Insurance 1,200,000 222,364 1,422,364
Special Vehicle 95,000 10,126 105,126
Search and Rescue 10,500 43,764 54,264
Historical Society g,000 273 B,273
Commission on Aging 92,700 689 93,389
Veterans Service 20,812 1,971 22,783
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December 31, 2017

Original Amended
Budget Amendment Budget

Appropriations

General Fund 5,609,536 303,273 5,912,809

Special Revenue Funds

Health Insurance 1,200,000 231,235 1,431,238
Special Vehicle &0, 000 46,914 106,914
Search and Rescus 7,500 175,734 183,234
Historical Scciety 8,000 1,884 9,884
Commission on Aging 78,800 21,982 100,782
Cemetery 1,500 624 2,124

Excess of Actual Expenditures Over Budget

Expenditures exceeded budget in the following funds for the years ending
Dacember 31:

2018 2017

Special Revenuese Funds

Mercer County Task Force 76,394.12
* Spcial Services 797,284 .27
* Emergency 5,079.54

County 911 3,324.25

Veterans Service 2,104.12
* Spcial Security 17.75 5.40

County Agent 22,835._33

* A budget was not prepared for this fund.

Mo remedial action is anticipated or required by the county regarding
these excess expenditures.
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MERCEE COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability
ND Public Employees Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Yearsw

2018 2017 2016 2015
County's proportion of the net
pension liability 0.346070% 0.34528B6% 0.304012% 0O.2ZB3028%
County'’'s proportionate share
of the net pension liability 5,562,481 3,374,885 2,067,230 1,796,439
County’s covered-employves
payroll 3,600,018 3,368,480 2,876,444 2,495,429
County's proportionate share
of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its
covered-employees payroll 154.51% 100.19% T1.87% 71.99%
Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total
pension liability 6l.98% TO.46% T7.15% 77.70%

Schedule of Employer Contributions
ND Public Employees Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years+*

2018 2017 2016 2015
Statutorily reguired contribution 256,321 239,837 204,803 185,532
Contributions in relatiom to the
statutorily required contribution [256,321) {239,837 (204,803} [168,532)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 0 0 0 0

County's covered-employee payroll 3,600,018 3,388,490 2,876,444 2,495,429

Contributions as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 7.12% 7.12% 7.12% 6.63%

* Complete data for this schedule is not available prier to 2015.

- For changes of assumptions, see Note 15 to the financial statements.




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, Morth Dakota
Schedule of Fund Activity
Arising from Cash Transactions
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Balance Tranzfers Transfers Balance
1-1-18 Receipts In Dut Disbursements 12-31-18
Major Governmental Funds
General Fund 591, 48524 5,200,453 .64 T65,235.00 451,000,00 5,728,326.57 37T, BLE.31
Building 562,355.¢M 3.374.14 500,000,00 &5, 730.05
County Building B23,672.42 7,064 32 777, 555.82 52,980.%2
Township Roads 376,350,756 20,122.17 466 4T2.93
County Road 1,161,819.90  1,778,444.38 2,682 T90.44 257, 4T3.84
Aid to Secondary Roads 567, 092.45 440,161,935 350,000.00 657,254 .38
Health Insurance 1,347,621 65 1,460, 482 10 1,422,364, 26 1.385,539.49
Total Major Governmental Funds 4,268, 179.63 B,353,47B.20 2,543,679.38 1,301,000.00 10,511,037.09 3,263,299.92
Mon-Major Goverrmental Funds
Sinking & [nterest &0,554.12 261,119.87 229,675.00 71,998.99
pPocument Preservation 75,729.45 16,996,460 3.357.92 B9, 347.93
Special Vehicle 18,985.2T 75,000.00 105,1246.28 (11,141,013
Search and Rescue 101,103 .63 3,354.05 50,000.00 &, 263,65 50,194.03
Mercer County Task Force (32,005.12) 18,418.23 376,000.00 400,927.69 (3B8,514.58)
Unorganized Road 140,830.37 319, 040.05 400, 000.00 59,890.42
State Highway 1,028, 444 .38 1,028,444 .58
Social Services 12,009.91 12,009.91
Comprehensive Health Care 2,388.62 2,388.62
Historical Society 1,785.14 8 853.17 8,272.59 2,365.72
Commission on Aging 42,9147 95,437.82 93,389.40 44 962,59
Emergency 139,384 .44 139,384 .44
Coumty 911 87,511.1 193,475 .88 183,038.19 98,147.80
11 Equipment Fund 51,401.99 20,000.00 71,601.99
Veterans Service 9. 636,15 22,648.70 22,783.20 2.501.65
Social Security 11,196.43 17.75 17.75 11,196,463
Advertising 2,037.11 359.40 1,677.71
County Agent B, 729.06 125,633.30 50, 000.00 170,775.32 13,587.04
Weed Control 103,357.98 334, 102.19 & ,000.00 261,915,446 171,566.51
Weed Contral Special &0, 564 .02 211.97 4, 000.00 &4, 775.99
CO Interest 184 ,085.22 17,499.98 165, 235.00 35,350.20
Passbook Savings Interest 99,054 .37 §,762.51 100, 000 . 00 3,816.88
County Corrections 2,17%.00 2, 17300
Cemetery T,038.07 34999 &,5688.08
Total Non-Major Governmental Funds  1,159,471.33 2,481 ,230.43 505,000.00 1,747,679.38 1,684 252.04 913, 770.34
Total Gowerrmental Funds 5,427,650.76 10,844,708 63 3,048 ,679.38 3, 048,679.38 12,095,28%9.13 &, 177,070.26
Enterprise Funds
Landfill 289, 357.11 297 ,637.90 28,000.00 250,585, 49 308, 408.52
Landfill Closure Reserve 120,000.00 8,000.00 128, 000.00
Landfill Loan 23, 849.75 38.02 20,000.00 43, BRT_TT
Total Enterprise Funds 433, 206,86 297 ,675.92 28,000.00 28,000.00 250,585.49 480, 295,29
[eont inued)
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MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Schedule of Fumd Actiwity
Arising from Cash Transactions
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
{cont inued)
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
1-1-18 Receipts in Out Disbursements 12-31-18

Agency Funds

Mercer Oliver Youth Bureau 169, 256 .69 172 ,BB5.37 (3,628.68)
Public Safety Grant 1,938.55 650,00 2,598.55
County Library 26,04%.05 142,848.23 137, 717.T6 31,.179.52
Water Resource District 26,020.7& 130,590,565 125,853.77 30,757.53
Custer Health District 36,577.02 209, 180.88 201,467 .38 LE 290,52
Ambulance 52,190.55 303,765.78 292, 463.07 A3, 493 26
Regional Airport 28,7T78.80 155, 916.84 153,919,485 30,776.18
State Revenue B,475.07 50,290.48 &7 . 6T8.92 11,085 63
County Court Trust B,602 .68 B,602.58
County 2&/7 Program 34,649 4B 36,1561.05 40, 357.29 30,453 26
Domestic Violence 140,00 1,015.00 1,120.00 35.00
Real Estate 10, B95, BF0. &9 10,895,B70.6%

Mobile Homes 77, 072.69 77,072.69

Tax Estimate 1,404,268 14,713.60 14,021.03 2,096 83
Protest Th6.25 T46.25
Game and Fish 3,084 .00 501.00 617.00 3,048.00
Payroll 7,073.93 958, 952.07 ¥58,573.848 T,L52.14
Veterans Memorial 505.89 £5.00 460 .89
Hazardous Chemical B,2B5.46 1.375.00 9,661, 48
Government Appreciation Week 30.11 250.00 486,00 LBL .11
Jeans Day 1,263.50 485.00 580.00 1,169.50
Soil Conservation District B,675.07 57,853.99 55,242.43 11, 08663
Southwest Water Autheority B, L7498 57,5854.09 55,262 35 11,0856.72
Hebron Ambulance District 2, 986,85 2,986.85
County Agent/Pesticide 16,523.55 1,348.08 2, 9TB. B4 16,892.79
Cities 39T, 97957 2,513,924 .91 2,407,622.31 S04, 482,17
Park Districts B&, 598 89 540,154 .94 511, 944.50 114, 809.33
School Districts 616,016,865 3.736,653.92 3,570,403.04 782,267.53
Fire Districts 26, 662 .19 161, 916,46 153,559.01 35,019.64
Fort Clark Irrigation District 1,203.00 24,952.50 24,052.50 2,103.00
Total Agency Funds 1,407, ,003.99 20,248, 098.55 19,901,584 27 1,753,518.27
Total Primary Government 7,267 86161 31,390,483.10 3,076,679.38 3,075,679.38 32, 24T,459.89 6,470,884 82
Discretely Presented
Component Unit:

Water Resource District B79,549.33 143, 280. 8B4 76,405,564 946 B26.53
Total Reporting Entity 8,147 B10.96 31,533,743.94 3, 07s,479.38 3,076,679.38 32,323, B55.53 7,357,709 35
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Major Governmental Funds
General Fund

Bui lding

County Building
Township Roads

County Road

Aid to Secondary Roads
Health Insurance

Total Major Goverrmental Funds

Hon-Major Governmental Funds

MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Schedule of Fund Activity

Arising from Cash Transactions

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Balance

Sinking & Interest
Document Preservation
Special Vehicle

Search and Rescue
Mercer County Task Force
Unorganized Road

State Highway

Social Services
Comprehensive Health Care
Historical Society
Commission on Aging
Emergency

County 911

911 Equipment Fund
Veterans Service

Social Security
Advertising

County Agent

Weed Control

Weed Control Special

CD Interest

Passbook Savings Interest
County Corrections
Cematery

Total Non-Major Governmental Funds

Total Goverrmental Funds

Enterprise Funds
Landfill

Landfill Closure Reserve
Landfill Loan

Total Enterprise Funds

(cont inued)

Transfers Transfers Balance
1-1-17 Receipts In Out Disbursements 12-31-17

1,785,555.39 4,645, 096 14 411,277.93 5,427 ,885.356 591,485, 24
558,992.77 3,363.14 562,355.9
5,988, B85 .43 1,335.00 6,165,748, 21 B23,472.42
290,540 684 85,810.10 376,350.74

184,984, 00 1,748,548.39 1,493 551.04 3,429,085.43
294, 948,28 372, 185.17 100,000.00 S67,092.45
1,391,019.78 1,387,636.46 1,631,234.59 1,347, 421,65
11,496,928.51 B,243,931.40 1,493,551.04 511,277.95 16,454 ,953.59 4,268, 17943
38, BBT_95 259, 821.25 238,155.08 60,554.12
54 ,07T9_65 25,627.90 3,978.10 75, 729.45

99,005.94 7.907.81 106,913.75
284 ,337.97 183,234 34 101,103,463
7,310.00 357,000.00 396,315.12 (32,005.12)
89,432.17 427, B5T7.62 376,459,462 140,830.37

1,017,091.62 1,017,091.62

128, T&8.10 650, 165,05 8,370.12 TOT 284 2T
1,882_31 506,31 2,388 &2
1,803.17 9,865,594 0,883.97 1,785.14
43,138.50 100,557, 44 100,781.77 42,9417
14k, 463 .98 5,079.54 139,384 44
56,130.34 164,128,086 132, 747.29 B7,.511.1
51,601.99 51,401.99
13,859.27 17,354.00 21,577.12 9,6356.15
10,511.89 L8994 5.40 11, 19643
2,396.51 359.40 2, 037.11
13,395.55 114, B&T . B4 38,000.00 157,534.33 B, 729.06
185,253.93 201,293.57 4, 000,00 279,189.52 103,357.98
556,366 T 197.28 &,000,00 60,564 .02
168, 755.29 15,329.93 184 ,085.22
93, T01.55 5,352.82 99,054 .37
1,587.564 587.36 2,175.00
7.038.07 7.038.07
1,162 83460 3,411,948 .84 15, 27793 1,397,551.04 2,433, 039.00 1,159,471.33
12,659,763 11 11,655,880.24 1,908,B28.97 1,908,B2B.97 18, B&T7,992.59 5,427,650, 74
238,452 .17 348, 192,44 297, 287.50 289, 357.1
120,000.00 120,000.00
23,828 T0 21.05 23,B49.75
382, 280.87 34B,213.49 297, 2BT.50 433, 206.86




MERCER COUNTY
Stanton, North Dakota

Schedule of Fund Activity
Arising from Cash Transactions
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(continued)
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
1-1-17 Receipts In Out Disbursements 12-31-17

Agency Funds

Mercer Oliver Youth Buresu 620,567 157,661.10 158,351.77

Public Safety Grant 1,078.55 850.00 1,5938.55
County Library 29,581.90 185, 928,63 189, 461.48 26,049.05
Water Resource District 26,680.40 152, 942,85 153,602.51 26,020.74
Custer Health District 26,451.92 165, 191.55 155, 066.45 24,577.02
Arbul ance 33,3921 210,550.95 191, 752.91 52,190.55
Regional Airport 20,408.93 119, 69663 111,326.76 28, 77880
State Revenue &, 730.21 52,616.43 50,871.57 8,475.07
County Court Trust §,522.58 320.00 8,602.58
County 24/7 Program 27, b4 04 43,570.00 34,384,564 34,649 48
Domestic Violence 105 .00 1,330.00 1,295.00 140.00
Real Estate 8, 668 022_&3 8,568 022.63

Mobile Homes 67,1541 A7, 115.41

Tax Estimate 4,197.1% 2,792.93 1,504 26
Game and Fish 3,140.00 1,712.00 1,768.00 3, 084.00
Payroll o9, @261 VB BZB.58 7,073.93
Veterans Memorial 855.89 350.00 505.89
Hazardous Chemical &, B98.96 1,387.50 B, 28B4, L4
Government Appreciation Week 0.1 0.1
Jeans Day 1,194 .50 £19.00 350.00 1,2463.50
County Fair 26 .65 153.58 180.27

Soil Conservation District 6,691,462 61, 474,01 59,590.56 8,475.07
Southwest Water Authority &, 697 .87 61,530.30 59,.753.19 B,476.98
County Agent/Pesticide 18,584 &1 1,597.70 3,65B.76 16,523.55
Cities 323,210.73 2,956, 966,53 2,882 197.69 3I97,.979.57
Park Districts 75,075.19 60, 211,92 4B 688,22 B5,598.89
School Districts LT 454 13 &, 387 031.458 4, 248, 458 94 616,015,865
Fire Districts 20,322.03 174,608 34 170, 268,18 26,662.19
Fort Clark Irrigation District TE3 .90 22,659 ,80 22,2B0.70 1,203.00
Total Agency Funds 1,122, 47304 19,153,378.12 18,868 B4T.17  1,407,003.99
Total Primary Government 14,164 517.02 31,157,471.85 1,908,B28.97 1,908,828.97 38,054,127.26 7,267,861 61
Discretely Presented

Component Unit:

Water Resource District TB2 474 .67 185,455,584 &7,981.18 BY9, 949.33

Tetal Reporting Entity 14,986,991 69 31,322, 927.69 1,908 828.97 1,908, B28.97 38,122,108.44 B, 147,810,594
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cﬁ afg & c’/l/fsﬁ’tz'z

Certified Public Accountants

Specializing in Governmeantal Auditing
Phone: (701) 258-4560 425 North Fifth Street

Jayson Rath, CPA Bismarck, ND 58501
Ken Mehrer, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Governing Board
Mercer County
Stanton, North Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Mercer County, Stanton, Worth Dakota, as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
county's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated May 17, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing ocur audits of the financial statements, we
considered the county’s internal control over financial reporting
{internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
cpinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the county's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the county’'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal contrel, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the county's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in intermal contrel that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important encugh to merit atrention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
sur audits we did net identify any deficiencies in intermal contrel that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

71




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the county's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreementg, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audits, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no

instances of noncompliance or other matters that are reguired to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intermal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
county’'s intermal control or on compliance. This is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the county's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any cther purpose.

Katle and Vletwec

Rath and Mehrer, P.C.

Bismarck, North Dakota

May 17, 2013




MERCEER COUNTY
Stanton, Worth Dakota

Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS:

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor’'s Report Issued:

Governmental Activities Unmodified
Business-Type Activities Unmodified
Discretely Presented Component Unit Unmodified
Major Governmental Funds Unmodified
Major Business-Type Funds Unmodified
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness(es] identified? Yes X HNo

* Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes ¥ Hone Reported

Noncompliance Material to financial
statements noted? Yes X Ho

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS:

No matters were reported
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